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Hoops

STRATEGIC REPORT
FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 30 DECEMBER 2017

The directors present their report and the audited financial statements for the period ended 30 December
2017. The results represent the 52 week period ended 30 December 2017 and the comparatives represent the
52 week period ended 31 December 2016.

Principal activities

The company was an investment holding company, it ceased its activities during the financial period ending 30
December 2017 and has no business currently.

Business review

As a result of group restructuring, the company ceased its activities during the financial pericd ending 30
December 2017. The company sold its subsidiary undertakings to the company’s intermediary parent, Effem
Holdings Limited and waived the loan receivable arising from the transaction. The company has no business
currently and the directors have not yet decided whether the company will be liquidated. Accordingly, the going
concern basis of preparation is no longer appropriate and the financial statements have been prepared on a
basis other than going concern. No adjustments were necessary in these financial statements to reduce assets
to their realisable values, or to provide for liabilties arising from the decision or to reclassify fixed assefs and
long term liabilities as current assets and liabilities.

Results and dividends

The profit for the financial pericd, after taxation, amounted £5,504,107,889 (2016: loss £6,090,960)

Dividends of £641,966,804 (2016: £nil) have been proposed and paid to holders of the ordinary shares, this
represents £1.9163189 per share (2016: £nil per share). No final dividend has been proposed (2016: £nil).

Principal risks and uncertainties

From the perspective of the company, the principal risks and uncertainties are integrated with the principal risks
of Effem Holdings Limited and are not managed separately. Accordingly, the principal risks and uncertainties of
Effem Holdings Limited, which include those of the company, are discussed in the Effem Holdings Limited's
annual report which does not form part of this report.

Financial key performance indicators ("KPis")

There are no other KPls, apart from the pre tax profit and net assets, which are disclosed in the financial

statements and as such further analysis is not required for an understanding of the development, performance
or position of the business.

Fincial risk management

The company has no exposure to interest rate, credit, price or liquidity risk.

This report was approved by the board on 27 September 2018 and signed on its behalf.

LN N

I Langer
Director
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Hoops

DIRECTORS' REPORT
FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 30 DECEMBER 2017

The directors present their report and the audited financial statements for the period ended 30 December
2017. The results represent the 52 week period ended 30 December 2017 and the comparatives represent the
52 week period ended 31 December 2016.

Directors’ responsibilities statement
The directors are responsible for preparing the Annual Report and the financial statements in accordance with
applicable law and regulation.

Company law requires the directors to prepare financial statements for each financial period. Under that law
the directors have prepared the financial statements in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted
Accounting Practice {(United Kingdom Accounting Standards, comprising FRS 102 “The Financial Reporting
Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland”, and applicable law).

Under company law the directors must not approve the financial statements uniess they are satisfied that they
give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the company and of the profit or loss of the company for that
period. In preparing the financial statements, the directors are required to:

. select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;

. state whether applicable United Kingdom Accounting Standards, comprising FRS 102, have been
followed, subject to any material departures disclosed and explained in the financial statements;

. make judgements and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and

. prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that

the company will continue in business.
The directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain

the company's transactions and disciose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the
company and enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply with the Companies Act 2006.

The directors are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the company and hence for taking reascnable
steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

Results and dividends
The profit for the financial period, after taxation, amounted £5,504,107 889 (2016: loss £6,090,960)

Dividends of £641,966,804 (2016. £nil) have been proposed and paid to holders of the ordinary shares, this
represents £1.9163188 per share (2016: £nil per share). No final dividend has been proposed (2016: £nil).

Directors
The directors who served during the period and up the date of signing the financial statements were:

G Enevoldsen

C Williams (resigned 29 December 2017)
i Langer

D Haines

A Parton

Directors' indemnities
The company maintains liability insurance for its directors and officers, which is a qualifying third party indemnity

provision for the purpose of the Companies Act 2006. The indemnity was in force throughout the financial period
and also at the date of approval of the financial statements.
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Hoops

DIRECTORS' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 30 DECEMBER 2017

Financial risk management

Details of financial risk management are shown in the Strategic Report.

Future developments

Details of future developments are shown in the business review within the Strategic Report.
Going concern

Details of going concern are shown in the accounting palicies.

Disclosure of information to independent auditors

Each of the persans who are directors at the time when this Directors’ Report is approved has confirmed that:

. so far as the director is aware, there is no relevant audit information of which the Company's auditors are
unaware, and
. the director has taken all the steps that ought to have been taken as a director in order to be aware of any

relevant audit information and to establish that the Company's auditors are aware of that information.

Independent auditors

Under section 487(2) of the Companies Act 2006, PricewaterhouseCoopers LLLP will be deemed tc have been
reappointed as auditors 28 days after these financial statements were sent to members or 28 days after the
latest date prescribed for filing the financial statements with the registrar, whichever is earlier.

This report was approved by the board on 27 September 2018 and signed on its behalf.

LX bengel™.

I Langer
Director
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Hoops

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF HOOPS

Report on the audit of the financial statements
Opinion

In our apinion, Hoops' financial statements:

. give a true and fair view of the state of the company’s affairs as at 30 December 2017 and of its profit for
the 52 week period (the “period”) then ended;

. have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting
Practice (United Kingdom Accounting Standards, comprising FRS 102 “The Financial Reporting Standard
applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland”’, and applicable law}; and

. have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006.

We have audited the financial statements, included within the Annual Report and Financial Statements (the
“Annual Report”), which comprise: the statement of financial position as at 30 December 2017; the income
statement, the statement of comprehensive income, the statement of changes in equity for the 52 week pericd
then ended; and the notes to the financial statements, which include a description of the significant accounting
policies.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) ("ISAs (UK)") and
applicable law. Our responsibilities under 1SAs (UK) are further described in the Auditors’ responsibilities for the
audit of the financial statements section of our report. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We remained independent of the company in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our
audit of the financial statements in the UK, which includes the FRC’s Ethical Standard, and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements.

Emphasis of matter - Basis of preparation

In forming our opinion on the financial statements, which is not modified, we have considered the adequacy of
the disclosure made in note 2.2 to the financial statements concerning the basis of preparation. As a result of
group restructuring, the company ceased its activities during the financial period ended 30 December 2017.
Accordingly,the going concem basis of preparation is no longer appropriate and the financial statements have
been prepared on a basis other than going concem as described in note 2.2 to the financial statements.No
adjustments were necessary in these financial statements to reduce assets to their realisable values, to provide
for liabilities arising from the decision or to reclassify fixed assets and long-term liabilities as current assets and
liabilities.

Reporting on other information

The other information comprises all of the information in the Annual Report other than the financial statements
and our auditors’ report thereon. The directors are responsible for the other information. Our opinion oh the
financial statements does not cover the other information and, accordingly, we do not express an audit opinion
or, except to the extent otherwise explicitly stated in this report, any form of assurance thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other infarmation and, in
doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we identify an apparent
material inconsistency or material misstatement, we are required to perform procedures to conclude whether
there is a material misstatement of the financial statements or a material misstaterment of the other information.
If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report based on these responsibilities.
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Hoops

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF HOOPS

With respect to the Strategic Report and Directors’ Report, we also considered whether the disclosures required
by the UK Companies Act 2006 have been included.

Based on the responsibilities described above and our work undertaken in the course of the audit, ISAs (UK)
require us also to report certain opinions and matters as described below.

Strategic Report and Directors’ Report

In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit, the information given in the Strategic
Report and Directors’ Report for the period ended 30 December 2017 is consistent with the financial statements
and has been prepared in accordance with applicable legal requirements.

In light of the knowledge and understanding of the company and its environment obtained in the course of the
audit, we did not identify any material misstatements in the Strategic Report and Directors’ Report.

Responsibilities for the financial statements and the audit

Responsibilities of the directors for the financial statements

As explained more fully in the Directors’ Responsibilities Statement set out on page 2, the directors are
responsible for the preparation of the financial statements in accordance with the applicable framework and for
being satisfied that they give a true and fair view. The directors are also responsible for such internal control as
they determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the company's ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the company or to cease operations,
or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditors’ responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors’ report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantes that an audit conducted in
accordance with 1SAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the econamic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial staiements is located on the FRC's
website at: www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of cur auditors’ report.

Use of this report

This report, including the opinions, has been prepared far and only for the company’s members as a body in
accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2008 and for no other purpose. We do not, in giving
these opinions, accept or assume responsibility for any other purpose or to any other perscn to whom this report
is shown or into whose hands it may come save where expressly agreed by our prior consent in writing.
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Hoops

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF HOOPS

Other required reporting
Companies Act 2006 exception reporting

{Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required to report to you if, in our opinion:

. we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit; or

. adequate accounting records have not been kept by the company, or returns adequate for our audit have
not been received from branches not visited by us; or

. certain disclosures of directors’ remuneration specified by law are not made; or

. the financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns.

We have no exceptions to report arising from this responsibility.

Christopher Hibbs { Senior Statutory Auditor)
for and on behalf of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditors
East Midlands

2% September 2018
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Hoops

INCOME STATEMENT
FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 30 DECEMBER 2017

Period Period
ended ended
30 December 31 December
2017 2016
Note £ £
Other operating income 3 4,578,009,697 -
Operating profit/result 4,578,009,697 -
Income from shares in group undertakings 7 928,571,047 -
Interest receivable and similar income 6 185
Interest payable and similar expenses 9 (2,472,861) (6,091,145)
Profit/{loss) before tax 5,504,107.889 (6,090,960)
Tax on profit/(loss) 10 - -
Profit/(loss) for the financial period 5,504,107,889 (6,090,960)

The notes on pages 12 to 20 form part of these financial statements,
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Hoops

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 30 DECEMBER 2017

2017 2016
Note £ £
Profit for the financial period 5,504,107,889 (6,090,960)
Other comprehensive expense
Waiver of lcan receivable (4,899,527,410) -
Other comprehensive expense for the period {4,899,527,410) -
Total comprehensive income/ (expense) for the period 604,580,479 (6,090,960)
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Hoops
REGISTERED NUMBER:02339397

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS AT 30 DECEMBER 2017

30 Ky |
December December
2017 2016
Note £ £
Fixed assets
Investments 12 - 480,585,000
- 480,585,000
Current assets
Cash at bank and in hand 1 113,347
1 113,347
Creditors: amounts falling due within one
year 13 - (443,312,021)
Net current assets/(liabilities) 1 (443,198,674)
Total assets less current liabilities 1 37,386,326
Net assets 1 37,386,326
Capital and reserves
Called up share capital 15 1 1,005,000
Retained earnings - 36,381,326
1 37,386,326

The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by the board and were signed on its behalf on
27 September 2018.

L.Q. .

| Langer
Director
The notes on pages 12 to 20 form part of these financial statements.
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Hoops

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 30 DECEMBER 2017

Called up Retained
share capital earnings Total equity
£ £ £

At 1 January 2017 1,005,000 36,381,326 37,386,326
Comprehensive income for the period
Profit for the financial period - 5,504,107,889 5,504,107,889
Other comprehensive expense - (4,899,527,410) (4,899,527,410)
Total comprehensive income for the period - 604,580,479 604,580,479
Dividends: Equity capital - (641,966,804) (641,966,804)
Capital Reduction (1,004,999) 1,004,999 -
At 30 December 2017 1 - 1

The notes on pages 12 to 20 form part of these financial statements.
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Hoops

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

Called up Retained

share capital earnings Total equity
£ £ £
At 3 January 2016 1,005,000 42,472,286 43,477,286
Comprehensive expense for the period
Loss for the financial period - (6,090,960) (6,090,960)
Total comprehensive expense for the period - (6,090,960) (6,090,960)
At 31 December 2016 1,005,000 36,381,326 37,386,326

The notes on pages 12 to 20 form part of these financial statements.
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Hoops

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 30 DECEMBER 2017

1.

General information

Hoops ('the Company') is an investment holding company. The company is a private unlimited company
and is incorporated in England. The address of its registered office is 3D Dundee Road, Slough,
Berkshire, SL1 4LG.

The financial statements of Hoops have been prepared in compliance with United Kingdom Accounting
Standards, including Financial Reporting Standards 102, “The Financial Reporting Standards applicable
in the United Kingdom and the Republic of Ireland” (“FRS 102”) and the Companies Act 2006.

The principal accounting policies applied the preparaticn of these financial statements are set out below.
These policies have been consistently applied to all of the periods presented, unless otherwise stated.

Summary of signicant accounting policies

21

2.2

23

Basis of preparation of financial statements

The financial statements have been prepared on a basis cother than going concern under the
historical cost convention and in accordance with Financial Reporting Standard 102, the Financial
Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and the Republic of Ireland (FRS 102) and the Companies
Act 2006.

The preparation of financial statements require the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It
also requires management to exercise its judgements in the processing of applying the accounting
policies. The accounts are not considered to contain any area involving a higher degree of
judgement or complexity and therefore no further consideration are required,

Going concern

As a result of group restructuring, the company ceased its activities during the financial period
ending 30 December 2017. The company sold its subsidiary undertakings to the company's
intermediary parent, Effem Holdings Limited and waived the loan receivable arising from the
transaction, The company has no business currently and the directors have not decided whether the
company will be liquidated. Accordingly, the going concern basis of preparation is no longer
appropriate and the financial statements have been prepared on a basis other than going concern.
No adjustments were necessary in these financial statements to reduce assets to their realisable
values, or to provide for liabilities arising from the decision or to reclassify fixed assets and long term
lliabilities as current assets and liabilities.

The comparative financial information continues to be prepared on a going concern basis.
Exemptions for qualifying entities under FRS 102

FRS 102 allows a qualifying entity certain disclosure exemptions, subject to certain conditions, which
have been complied with, including notification of, and no objection to, the use of exemptions by the
Company's shareholders.

The Company has taken advantage of the exemption from preparing a statement of cash flows,
required under FR$102 paragraph 1.12 (b), on the basis that it is a qualifying entity and its
intermediate parent company, Wm. Wrigley Jr. Company, includes the company's cash flows in its
own consolidated financial statements.

Page 12



Hoops

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 30 DECEMBER 2017

2.

Summary of signicant accounting policies {continued)

2.4 Financial instruments

2.5

The company has chosen to adopt Sections 11 and 12 of FRS 102 in respect of financial
instruments.

(i) Financial assets

Basic financial assets, including cash and bank balances, are initially recognised at transaction
price.

Such assets are subsequently carried at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

At the end of each reporting pericd financial assets measured at amortised cost are assessed for
objective evidence of impairment. If an asset is impaired the impairment loss is the difference
between the carrying amount and the present value of the estimated cash flows discounted at the
asset’s original effective interest rate. The impairment loss is recognised in the income statement.

If there is decrease in the impairment loss arising from an event occurring after the impairment was
recognised the impairment is reversed. The reversal is such that the current carrying amount does
not exceed what the carrying amount would have been had the impairment not previously been
recognised. The impairment reversal is recognised in the income statement.

Financial assets are derecognised when (a) the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset
expire or are settled, or (b) substantially all the risks and rewards of the ownership of the asset are
transferred to another party or {¢) control of the asset has been transferred to another party who has
the practical ability to unilaterally sell the asset to an unrelated third party without imposing additional
restrictions.

(ii) Financial liabilities

Basic financial liabilities, including amounts owed to group undertakings, are initially recognised at
transaction price.

Debt instruments are subsequently carried at amortised cost, using the effective interest rate
methed.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the liability is extinguished, that is when the contractual
obligation is discharged, cancelled or expired.

Valuation of investments

Investments held as fixed assets are shown at cost less provision for impairment. Provision is made
against cost where, in the opinion of the directors, the value of the investment has been impaired.
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Hoops

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 30 DECEMBER 2017

Summary of signicant accounting policies (continued)

26

2.7

28

29

impairment of non-financial assets

At each statement of financial position date non-financial assets not carried at fair value are
assessed to determine whether there is an indication that the asset (or asset's cash generating unit)
may be impaired. If there is such an indication the recoverable amount of the asset {or asset's cash
generating unit) is compared to the carrying amount of the asset (or asset’s cash generating unit).

The recoverable amount of the asset (or asset's cash generating unit) is the higher of the fair value
less costs to sell and value in use. Value in use is defined as the present value of the future cash
flows before interest and tax obtainable as a result of the asset’s (or asset's cash generating unit)
continued use. These cash flows are discounted using a pre-tax discount rate that represents the
current market risk-free rate and the risks inherent in the asset.

If the recoverable amount of the asset (or asset's cash generating unit) is estimated to be lower than
the carrying amount, the carrying amount is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss
is recognised in the income statement, unless the asset has been revalued when the amount is
recognised in other comprehensive income to the extent of any previously recognised revaluation.
Thereafter any excess is recognised in the income statement.

If an impairment loss is subsequently reversed, the carrying amount of the asset (or asset's cash
generating unit) is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but only to the extent
that the revised carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined (net of depreciation or amortisation) had no impairment loss been recognised in prior
periods. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised in the income statement.

Functional and presentation currency

The Company's functional and presentational currency is pound sterling.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents includes cash in hand, deposits held at call with banks, other short-term
highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less and bank overdrafts. Bank
overdrafts, when applicable, are shown within borrowings in current fiabilities.

Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new
ordinary shares are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.

2.10 Dividends

Equity dividends are recognised when they become legally payable. Interim equity dividends are
recognised when paid. Final equity dividends are recognised when approved by the shareholders at
an annual general meeting. Dividends on shares recognised as liabilities are recognised as
expenses and classified within interest payable.
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Hoops

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 30 DECEMBER 2017

Summary of signicant accounting policies {(continued)

2.11 Current tax
Current tax is the amount of income tax payable in respect of the taxable profit for the period or prior
periods. Tax is calculated on the basis of tax rates and laws that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the period end. The taxation liabilities of certain group companies are reduced wholly or
in part by the surrender of losses by fellow group companies.

2.12 Related party transactions

The company is exempt from disclosing transactions with related parties, which are wholly owned
within the group.

2.13 Interest income

Interest income is recognised in the Income Statement using the effective interest method.

Other operating income

30 31
December December
2017 2016
£ £
Profit from sale of shares in group undertakings 4,578,009,697 -

4,578,009,697 -

Directors' remuneration

In both the current and prior periods directors’ emoluments were borne by other companies, Mars Wrigley
Confectionery UK Limited (formerly Mars Chocolate UK Limited), Mars Petcare UK and Mars Food UK
Limited. The directors received aggregate emoluments of £11,000 (2016: £5,000) for their services to the
company during the period.

The company has no employees (2016: none).

Key management compensation

Key management includes the directors. Key management fees are borne by other group companies,
Mars Wrigley Confectionery UK Limited (formerly Mars Chocolate UK Limited) and Mars Food Uk
LLimited. Key management received aggregate emoluments of £16,000 (20186: £14,000) for their services
to the company during the period.
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Hoops

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 30 DECEMBER 2017

Auditors' remuneration

30 31
December December
2017 2016
£ £

Fees payable to the Company's auditor and its associates for the audit of
the Company's annual accounts 1,500 2,000
1,500 2,000

Audit fees are borne by other group companies, Mars Wrigley Confectionery UK Limited (formerly Mars
Choceolate UK Limited), Mars Petcare UK and Mars Food UK Limited. No non-audit fees were incurred in
the period (2016: none).

Income from shares in group undertakings

30 Y
December December
2017 2016
£ £
Dividends received from subsidiary undertakings 928,571,047 -
928,571,047 -
Interest receivable
30 31
December December
2017 2016
£ f
Interest receivable from group companies 6 185
6 185
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Hoops

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 30 DECEMBER 2017

10.

Interest payable and similar charges

30 31
December December
2017 2016
£ £
Qn loans from group undertakings 2,472,861 6,091,145
2,472,861 6,091,145
Taxation
30 K|
December December
2017 2016
£ £

Taxation on profit on ordinary activities -

Factors affecting tax charge for the period

The tax assessed for the period is lower than (2016 - higher than) the standard rate of corporation tax in the

UK of19.25% (2016 - 20.00%). The differences are explained below:

30 31
December December
2017 2016
£ £
Profit /(Loss) on ordinary activities before taxation 5,504,107,889 (6,090,960)
Profit /(Loss) on ordinary activities multiplied by standard rate of corporation
tax in the UK of 19.25% (2016 - 20.00%) 1,059,540,769  (1,218,192)
Effects of:
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes 476,026 -
Non-taxable income (1,060,016,785) -
Group relief - 1,218,192

Total tax charge for the period -
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Hoops

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 30 DECEMBER 2017

10.

1.

12.

Taxation (continued}

Factors that may affect future tax charges

The Finance Act 2016 included legislation to reduce the rate to 17% from 1 April 2020. The reduction has
been enacted at the period end date and therefore, reflected in these financial statements.

There is no provided or unprovided deferred tax assets/liabilities in the period (2016: £nil)

Dividends
30 31
December December
2017 2016
£ £
Interim dividends of £1.8163188 per share paid during the period 641,966,804 -
641,966,804 -
Investments
Investments
in subsidiary
companies
£
Cost or valuation
At 1 January 2017 480,585,000

Disposals

At 30 December 2017

Net book value

At 30 December 2017

At 31 December 2016

(480,585,000)

480,585,000

On 21 August 2017, the company sold its investment in the subsidiary to an affiliate company.
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Hoops

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 30 DECEMBER 2017

13.

14.

Creditors: Amounts falling due within one year

30 31

December  December

2017 2016

£ £

Amounts owed to group undertakings - 443,312,021
- 443,312,021

The amounts cwed to group undertakings falling due within one year relate to unsecured loans on which
interest is charged at a rate of 1% abecve the UK base rate.

£Nil (2016: £157,378,000} of the amounts due to group undertakings within one year is repayable on

demand by either counterparty to the agreement. The remaining intercompany loans are renewable
annually unless 30 days notice is given of cancellation by either counterparty to the agreement.

Financial instruments

30
December 31 December
2017 2018
£ £
Financial assets measured at amortised cost
Cash at bank and in hand 1 113,347
1 113,347
Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost
Amounts owed to group undertakings - (443,312,021)

- (443,312,021)
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Hoops

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 30 DECEMBER 2017

15.

16.

Called up share capital

30 31
December December
2017 2016
£ £
Shares classified as equity
Allotted, called up and fully paid
335,600,000 (2016: 335,000,000} ordinary shares of £0.000000003 each
{2016: £0.003 each) 1 1,005,000

There is a single class of ordinary shares. There is no restriction on the distibution of dividends and
repayment of capital. During the year the company had a reduction in share capital of £ 1,004,599 (2016:
£ Nil)

Controlling party

The company's ultimate parent undertaking and controlling party is Mars, Incorporated (the largest group
to consolidate), a company incorporated in the State of Delaware, USA. The company's immediate
parent undertaking is Hoops 2 Limited, a company registered in England and Wales. The company is a
wholly owned subsidiary of Wm. Wrigley Jr. Company (the smallest group to consolidate) and is included
in the consolidated financial statements of that company, a copy of which will be submitted alongside
these financial statements and may be obtained from The Registrar of Companies, Companies
Registration Office, Companies House, Crown Way, Maindy, Cardiff, CF4 3UZ. Wm. Wrigley Jr.
Company's registered office is The Corporation Trust Company, Corporation Trust Center, 1209 Orange
Street, Wilmington DE 19801, United States.
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ReportofiIndependent Avditors
To the Board of Directors of Wm. Wrigley Jr, Company:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Wm. Wrigley Jr. Company
and its subsidiaries, which comprise the consolidated balance sheets as of December 30, 2017 and
December 31, 2016, and the related consolidated statements of income, comprehensive income,
changes in stockholders’ investment and cash flows for the years then ended.

Management's Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial
statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America; this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the
preparation and fair presentation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements based on our
audits. We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free ffom material
misstatement.

An gudil involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures
in the consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on our judgment, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, we consider internal control relevant to the
Company's preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company's internal control. Accordingly, we express
no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies vsed and
the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the
overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements. We believe that the audit evidence we
have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our avdit opinion,

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of Wm. Wrigley Jr. Company and its subsidiaries as of December 30,
2017, and December 31, 20 16, and the results of their operations and their cash flows for the years then
ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.
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Emphasis of Matter

As discussed in Notes 1 and 13 to the consolidated financial statements, the Company has entered into
significant transactions with Mars, Incorporated and its subsidiaries, a related party. Our opinion is
not modified with respect to this matter.

Patceunthanslospan LLP

MclLean, Virginia
March 30,2018



WM. WRIGLEY JR. COMPANY
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 30, 2017 AND DECEMBER 31, 2016

USD in thousands

Net sdes
Cost of products sold

Sdlling, general and adminigirative expense
Amortization of intangible assets
Impairments of intangible assets

Income from operations

Interest expense

Imerest expense with Mars, net
Irvestment incorme, net

Foreign exchange (income} loss, net
Income before provision for income taxes

Provision for income taxes
Net incorme

Net income attributable to the noncontrolling interests
Net income attri butabl e to Wm. Wrigley . Company

2017 2016
21435007 $ 21,184,231
12,055,758 11,701,973
9,379,249 0,482 258
5,834,839 5,760,014
653,704 651,581
649,280 —
2,241,426 3,070,663
102,747 126,245
57 33994
(11,135) (12,143)
(152,066) 203,217
2,301,823 2,719,350
337,201 870,149
1,964,622 1,849,201
361,606 431,157
1603016 $ 1,418,044

The acoompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financid statements.
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WM. WRIGLEY JR. COMPANY
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEARS ENDED PECEMBER 30, 2017 AND BECEMBER 31, 2016
USD in thousands :

2017 2016
Net income : $ 1964622 § 1,849,201
Other comprehensive {loss) income, net of tax
Foreign currency translation adjustments 1,716,285 (51,896)
Net changein deferred hedges (15,996} (1,432}
Net unvedized change on investments 67,701 26,302
Net change in pension and other post retirement benefits (181,033) (447,663)
Total comprehensiveincome 3,651,579 1,374,512
Comprehensive income attributable to noncontrolling interests 363,483 426,204

Comprehensive income attributable to Wm. Wrigley &r. Company § 3,188,006 § 948,308

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolfdated financial statements.
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WM. WRIGLEY JR. COMPANY
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 34, 2017 AND DECEMBER 31, 2016
USD in thousands
2017 2016

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATINGACTIVITIES
Net income 3 1,964622 § 1,849,201
Adjustments to recondile net Income to net cash provided by
operating activities, net of the impact of acquisitiors

Depreciation and amortization 1,286,536 1,215,601
Impairments of i ntangible assets 649,280 -
Foreign exchange (gain) loss (152,066) 203,217
Amortization of deferred financing costs ‘ 4,601 9,541
(Gains) losses on investments (10,166) 484
Deferred income taxes (667,742) {14,865}
Changes in current assets and liabilities:
Changes in accounts receivable (55,256) (111,759)
Changes in inventories {165,503) (111,452)
Changes in accounts payable and accrued ligbilities 172,748 368,528
Changes in acorued interest (4,944) 6,250
Changes in income taxes receivabl e and payable 123,274 (36,184)
Changes in other current assets and liabilities (11,322) 49,469
Changes in other noncurrent investments 9,802 15,788
Changes in other noncurrent associ ate benefit assets and liabilities (37,101) (164,973)
Changes in other noncurrent assets and liabilities 53,961 (4,890)
Net cash provided by operating activities 3,160,724 3,273,956
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Capital expenditures {796,558) (855,644)
Purchases of investments {103,379) (10,696)
Sales of investments 59,422 8,641
Froperty, plant and equipment disposal proceeds 20,641 34,136
Net investment hedge settlement payments (2,022) {1,289)
Acquisitions of businesses {171,197) (198,628)
Net cash used in investing activities {993,093) {1,023,480)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Borrowings from Mars 221,000 85,000
Repayments to Mars (354,456) (200,000}
Repayments of long-term debt (400,000) (453,770)
Debt issuance costs — {1,900}
Dividends pald (443,293) (232,949}
Net trangfers to Mars . {8B4,051) {1,127,745)
Other financing activities 5,748 3,429
Net cash used in financing activities (1,835,052) (1,927,935}
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivdents 101,001 (171,723}
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 433,580 150,818
Cash and cash equivalents a beginning of year 1,837,873 1,687,055
Cash and cash equivalents & end of year $ 2271453 % 1,837,873

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.



WM. WRIGLEY JR. COMPANY
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

AS OF DECEMBER 30, 2017 AND DECEMBER 31, 2016
USD in thousands, except par value and shares
2017 2016
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivadents $§ 227453 § 1837873
Investments 645,536 468,697
Due from Mars, net 4,353,245 5,519,889
Accounts receiveble, nat of allowances of $27,275 and $19.829 697,313 594,846
Inventories 1,792,141 1,521,271
Deferred income tavies — 113,293
Income taxes receivable 113,604 101,724
Prepaid expenses and other 269,740 275,520
Total current assets 10,143,032 10,433,113
Property, plant and equipment, net 4,551,649 4,092,875
Prepaid associate benefit aseets 234,960 2413
Goodwill 12,349,286 11,537,771
Intangibie assets, net 3,363,397 4417878
Deferred income taxes 338,855 497,219
Other assets 372,226 382,459
TOTALASSETS $ 31353406 $ 31,363,728
LIABILITIES
Due to banks $ 9913 § 3,483
Borrowings from Mars 634,677 543133
Current instalments on long-term debt 550,728 399,877
Current portion of accrued associae benefits 23,053 19,567
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 5,751,534 5,237,271
Accrued interest 12,521 17,062
Deferred income taxes — 41,526
Income taxes payable 217,914 158,527
Tota current ligbilities 7,200,340 6,417,446
Long-term debt, less current installments 1,649,449 2,351,956
L onhg-term borrowings from Mars 1,106,250 1,331,250
Accrued associate benefits 2,935,321 2,698,988
Deferred income taxes 452,883 1,335,122
Cther liabilities 763,301 525,881
TOTAL LIABILITIES 14,108,524 14,660,243
STOCKHOLDERS INVESTMENT
Preferred stock, par value $0.01 per share; none authorized, issued and
outstanding (96,500 in 2016) - 1,041,696
Common stock, par value $0.01 per share; 1,000,000 shares authorized
issued and oulstanding; (903,500 issued and outstanding in 2016} 10 9
Paid-in capital 16,703,990 14,030,197
Retained eanings 1,429,938 2,564,736
Accumulaed other comprehensive loss (5,144,570) (6,729,650)
TOTAL WM. WRIGLEY JR. COMFANY STOCKHOLDERS'
INVESTMENT 12,989,368 10,806,988
Noncontrolling interests - other 4,255,513 5,796,497
TOTAL STOCKHOLDERS INVESTMENT 17,244,881 16,703,485
TOTAL LIABILITIESAND STOCKHOLDERS' INVESTMENT $ 31353405 $ 31,363,728

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financid statements.



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN STOCKHOLDERS' INVESTMENT

Baance, January 2, 2016
Comprehensive income (loss)
Accrued preferred stock dividends
Affiliate investment
Affiliate dividends

Balance, Decernber 31, 2016

Comprehensive income

Acocrued preferred stock dividends
Preferred stock conversion
Affiliate investment

Affiliate dividends

Noncontrolling interest of
acquired entity

Balanoe, Decernber 30, 2017

WM. WRIGLEY JR. COMPANY

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 30, 2017 AND DECEMBER 31, 2016

USD in thousands
Totak Wm.
Accumulaled Wrigley .F. )
other Company . Totd
Freferred Common Paid-in Retained comprehensive  stockholders  Noncontrolling  stockholders'
stock stock capita earnings loss investment interests investment

$ 987833 % 9 $13212472 $2351642 $ (6259914) $ 10292042 § 5370293 $ 15662335
- — — 1,418,044 (469,736) 948,308 426,204 1,374,512

53,863 — - (53,863) — — - —

- —_ 817,725 — — 817,725 - 817,725
-— — —  (1,151,087) —_ (1.151,087) — {1,151,087)
$1.0416% § 9 $14,030,197 $2,564,736 $ (6,720650) $ 10,906,988 ' 5,796,497 § 16,703,485
- — — 1,603,016 1,585,080 3,188,006 363,483 3,551,579

31,219 — — {31,219) — _— — —
(1.072,915) i 1072914 — — — — —
-— — 1,600,879 — — 1,600,879 320,645 1,921,524
- — —  (2,706,595) — (2,706,595) (2,261,912) (4,968,507)

-— — _ — — —_ 36,800 35,800

$ — $ 10 $16,703,990 $1,420038 § (5144,570) § 12989368 3 4255513 § 17,244,881

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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WM. WRIGLEY JR. COMPANY
NOTES TO CONSOL IDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ASOF DECEMBER 30, 2017 AND DECEMBER 31, 2016
(USD in thousands, uniess otherwise noted}

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Principles of Consol idation and Basis of Fresentation

The consolidated financial statementsind udethe accounts of Wm. Wrigley Jr. Company ("Wrigley™),
asubsidiary of Mars, incorporated (“Mars"), and subsidiaries (collectivdy, the * Company” ). For the
consolidated subsidiaries in which the Company’s ownership is less than 100 percent, the minority
stockholders' interests are shown as nonoontrolling interests ("NCI"). Investments in affiliates over
which the Company has significant influence but not a contralling interest are carried on the equity
basis. Investments in affiliates over which the Company does not have significant influence are
acocounted for by the cost method or as avalable-for-sde securities. All intercompany accounts and
transactions are diminated in consolidation.

The Company’s fiscal yeer consists of 52 or 53 weeks. Thefiscal years ended December 30, 2017 and
December 31, 2016 are 52 weeks.

Reorganization and changein presentation

During thefiscal year ended December 30, 2017, Mars contributed certain subsidiaries to theCompany
as part of aglobal reorganization. The contri butions were transfers of entities under common control
and al periods presented reflect the financial position, results of operations and cash flows of these
entities asif they had been contributed to the Company as of October 6, 2008, the date Mars aocquired
the Company. This change in presentation increased stockholders' investment by $6,812 million at
January 2, 2016. The consolidated financia statements do not give effect to contributions to the
Company subsequent to December 30, 2017.

As part of this reorganization, Wrigley and Mars contributed certain subsidiaries to Mars Chocol ate
North America {"MCNA"). Wrigley has a 55% equity ownership in post-contribution MCNA and
Mars has 45% nencontrolling interest.

During theyearsended December 30, 2017 and December 31, 2016, Wrigl ey made norr-cashdividends
to Mars of $4,525 million and $918 million, respectively. These non-cash dividends are induded in
the Consolidated Statement of Changes in Stockholders | nvestment.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financia statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted
in the United States of America ("U.S. GAAP") requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of sales, costs and expenses, assets and liabilities, and
disdosureof contingent assetsand lisbilitiesat thedateof theconsolidated financial statements. Actudl
results could differ from those estimates.



Recent Accounting Pronouncements
Sandards Effectivein the Current Year

in May 2015, the FASB issued an updated accounting standard to address the diversity in practice
rel ated to how cartain investments measured at net asset vaue ("NAV") with redemption dates in the
future are categorized within the fair value hierarchy. The amendments in this update remove the
requirement lo categorize within the fair value hierarchy al investments for which fair value is
measured using the NAV per share asa practica expedient. Prior year amounts have been recl assified
to conform to the current year presentation. See Note 4, Pension and Other Pestretirement Plans.

In Novemnber 2015, the FASB issued an amended accounting standard on dassification of deferred
taxes. This standard requires deferred tax assets and liabilities, along with any rdated valuation
alowance, to be dassified as noncurrent on the balance sheet, and diminates the requirement under
prior guidance to present separatdy current and noncurrent deferred tax assets and liabilities on the
balance sheat. The amendmert, which may be applied either prospectivay or retrospectivdy, is
effective for fiscal 2018, with eerly adoption permitted. The Company early adopted the standard in
2017 with a progpective approach, as such comparative balances in 2016 were not retrospectivdy
adjusted. See Note 6, Income Taxes.

In January 2016, the FASB amended acoounting standards requiring al equity investments to be
measured at fair valuewith changesinfair valuerecognized through net i ncomeexcept for investments
accounted for urder the equity method of accounting or thoseinvestments that result in consolidation
of theinvestee The amendments alow cost method investments to be remeasured at fair vaueeither
upon occurrence of an obsarvabl e price changeor upon identification of an impairment. The standard
is effective for the Company at the end of fiscal year 2019 and for subsequent interim periods. Early
adoption is permitted as of fiscal year 2018 including the interim periods of fiscd year 2018, The
Company is evauating the impact of this standard on the consolidated financial statements. One
provisionof thestandard all owsnorpublic entitiesto disconti nuedisd osureof thefair valueof financid
instruments accounted for at amortized cost and this provision may be early adopted in fiscal year
2017. The Company early adopted this provision in fisca year 2017.

Standards Effective in Future Years

The Company is evaluating theimpact on the consolidated financial statements for the following
standards effective in future years:

InMay 2014, theFASB issued anew accounting standard on revenuerecognition. Thestandard requires
an entity to recognize revenue for the transfer of goods or services to customers for an amount the
entity expectsto beentitled to receivein exchangefor thosegoods or services. Thestandard iseffective
for non-public entities beginning in 2019.

virtuglly all of their |eases on the balance sheet by recording right-of-use assets and |ease liabilities.
Under the new guidance, there will be a dua modd for income statement recognition that resultsin
either straight-line or front-loaded expense recognition, depending on the type of lease. Entities are
required to use a modified retrospective approach for |eases that exist or are entered into after the
beginning of the earliest comparative period in thefinancial statements. Thisguidanceis effectivefor
the Company in fiscal year 2020 and d| subsequent interim periods with early adoption permitted.



In June 2016, the FASB issued anew credit | oss standard that changes the impairment modd for most
financid assets and certain other instruments. Under the new guidance, entities arerequired touse a
new forward-looking * expected loss” modd which will result in earlier measurement of credit losses
than under the current incurred loss modd. The standard which is effective for the Company at the
end of fiscal year 2021, with early adoption permitted as of fisca year 2019.

InAugust 2016, the FASB issued a new cash flow dassification standard intended to reduce diversity
inpracticein how certain cash recei pts and cash payments are presented and dassifi ed in the statement
of cash flows. Thisstandardiseffectivefor the Company infiscal year 2019and al subssquent interim
periods. The guidance requires application using a retroactive transition method. Early adoption is
permitted, provided that dl of the amendments are adopted in the same period.

In October 2016, the FASB issued a new standard related to the inoome tax consequences of intra-
entity transfers of assets other than inventory intended to reduce diversity in practice and to
appropriately present the sconomics of intra-entity asset transfers. Current guidance prohibits the
recognition of current and deferred income taxes for an intra-entity asset transfear until the asset has
been sold to an outside party. However, the new standard states that an entity should recognize the
income tax consequences of an intra-entity transfer of an asset other than inventory when the transfer
ocours. This standard is effective for the Company in fiscal year 2019 and al subsequent interim
perfodswithearly adoptionpermitted. Entitiesarerequired toapply theupdateon amadified retroactive
basis through a cumul ative-effect adjustment directly to retained earnings as of the beginning of the
period of adoption.

1n November 2016, the FASB issued a new cash flow standard intended to reduce diversity in practice
in how restricted cash has been dassified and presented in the statement of cash flows. The new
guidance requires restricted cash and restricted cash equivaents to be induded with cash and cash
equiva ents when reconciling the beginning-of-period and end-of-period tota amounts shown on the
statement of cash flows. This standard is effective for the Company in fiscal year 2019 and ali
subsequent interim periods. The guidance should be applied using a retrospective transition method
to each period presented with eexly adoption permitted.

in March 2017, the FASE issued guidance updating the presentation of net periodic pension and
postretirement benefit costs. This update requires that the service cost component be disaggregated
from the other components of net periodic benefit costs. In addition, the update requires that only
service cost can be induded as an associate cost within the operating section of thesincome statement
and only the service cost component will be digible for capitalization. The guidancewill be applied
retrospectively, with a prospective approach taken for capitalization of service costs and is effective
for the Company in fiscal year 2019.

inAugust 2017, the FASB issued guidance improving financid reporting of hedging ref ationships to
better portray the economic results of an entity’s risk management activities for al entities that apply
hedge accounting. The guidance (i) more dosely aigns the results of cash flow and fair vdue hedge
. aoccounting with ri sk management activiti es through changes to both the designation and measurement
guidance for qualifying hedging relationships and the presentation of hedge results in the financial
staternents, (ii} expands hedge accounting for bath nonfinancia and financia risk components, and
(iii} refines the measurement of hedge results to better reflect an entity’s hedging strategies. The
amendment aigns the timing of recognition of hedge results with the earnings effect of the hedged
item for cash flow and net investment hedges by i nduding theearni ngs effect of thehedging instrument
in the same income statement line item in which the earnings effect of the hedged item is presented.
This guidance will be effective for the Company in fiscal year 2020, with early adoption permitted
for any interim period.
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In February 2018, the FASB issued updated guidance rel ated to reporting comprehensiveincome The
amendrmentsin theupdateal low for aone-timerecl assification from accumul atexd other comprehensive
loss to retained earnings for stranded tax effects as a result from the enactment of the Tax Cuts and
Jobs Act of 2017. The updated guidance is effective for all entities for fiscal years beginning after
December 15,2018, and interi m periodswithin thosefisca years. Early adoptionispermitted, induding
adoption in any interim period for reporting periods for which financia statements have not yet been
issued. The updated guidance should be apptied either in the period of adoption or retrospectively to
each period (or pariods) in which the effect of the change in the 2017 Tax Act is recognized. The
Company has not yet determined the timing of adoption or estimated the effect on the Company's
financid statements.

Foreign Cufrer_x:y Trand ation

The Company uses thecurrent rate method of trandating foreign currency financia statements, except
for countries deemed to be highly inflationary for which a combination of current and historica
exchange rates are used and any trand ation adjustmernts areinduded in net income. Gains and losses
on trandlation of equity interests in subsidiaries outside the United States of America (*U.S.7) and
intercompany notes of a long-term investment nature are reported within accumulated cother
comprehensive loss, net of tax, within stockholders’ investrent in the Consolidated Bal ance Sheets.
The Company does not have any materid exposure to highly inflationary economies.

Cash and Cash Equivdents

Cash and cash equiva ents ind ude cash on hand, interest and non-interest bearing bank deposits and
saqurities with origind maturities of three months or less,

Cash Flows

Cash paymentsfor interest were $84 million and $133 million for theyears ended December 30, 2017,
and Decemnber 31, 2016, respectively. Net cash payments for income taxes were $657 million and
$689 million for the years ended December 30, 2017 and December 31, 2016, respectively.

The Company engaged in significant non-cash financing activities mainy with related parties. These
non-cash transactions are described in Note 1 * Reorganization and change in presentation” and Note
5 "Long-term debt".

Revenue Recognition

Revenue is recognized when the earnings process is complete. "Generadly, this occurs when products
are shipped in accordance with terms of agreements, title and risk of loss transfer to customers,
cotlection is probable, and pricing is fixed or determinable The Company recognizes allowances for
estimated retums, disoounts, promotions, and incentives in the period when the sale is recognized.
Thedlowances are estimated basad on historica experience and other factors and areinduded within
net sdes in the Consolidated Statements of | ncome:

During the years ended December 30, 2017 and December 31, 2016, the Company'slargest customer
accounte] for 10 percent of net sales. No other customer accounted for 10 percent or moreof net sales.

"



Investments

Investmentsin debt and equity securities aregeneral ly dassified as avail able-for-saleand arereported
a fair value, with unredlized gains and losses exduded from income and induded as a separate
component of accumul ated other comprehensiveloss net of deferred incometaxes. Realized gainsand
losses on the sales of these securities are computed basad on the specific identification method and
areincluded in income.

Investments are considered to be impaired when a dedline in fair value is judged to be other-than-
temporary. TheCompany consi dersfactors affecting theissuer, factorsaffecting theindustry theissuer
operates within, and genera debt and equity market trends. The Company considersthelength of time
an investment's fair vaue has been below carrying vaue, the severity of the dedline, the near term
prospectsfor recovery to cost, and theCompany’sintent and ability to hol d theinvestment until maturity
or market recovery isrealized. If and when a determination is made that adedinein fair vdluebelow
the cost basisis other-thar-temporary, therd ated investment iswritten down 1o its estimated fair vaue
through a charge to earnings.

Accounts Receivable

Trade accounts receivable are recorded at net redizable vaue This value indudes an alowance for
estimated uncollectibie accounts to reflect any loss anticipated on the trade acoounts receivable
balances. The dlowance for doubtful accounts represents the Company's estimate of the amount of
probabl ecredit lossesin existing accounts receivabl e, asdetermined from areview of past duebd ances
and other re evant information.

|nventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost or market. The Company uses thefirst-in, first-out method
in determining the majority of its inventory costs. The last-in, first out ("LIFO™) methed is used in
determining inventory costs in substantialy all U.S. operating units. Approximately 38% and 41% of
the Company's inventory was accounted for using the LIFO method as of December 30, 2017 and
December 31, 2016, respectivdy. Asof December 30, 2017 and Decermnber 31, 2016, the Consolidated
Balance Sheetsind ude $115 million and $117 million of inventory i nother assets that wereacocunted
for using LIFO. if replacement cost had been used, invertories would have been $69 million and $07
million higher than reported as of December 30, 2017 and December 31, 2016, respectivdy.

Inventories consist of the following as of December 30, 2017 and December 31, 2016:

2017 2016
Finished goods $ 1266631 $ 1,032,782
Raw materias 525,510 438,489

$ 1792141 § 1,521,271

Property. Plant and Equipment
Property, plant and equipment arerecorded at cost. Routine repair and mai ntenance costs are expensed

asincurred. Deprexi stion expenseduring theyears ended December 30, 2017 and December 31, 2016,
was $609 million and $545 million, respectivaly.
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Depreciation is generaly provided on the siraight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the
rel ated assetsfor financial reporting purposes. Theestimated useful lives of depreciable property, plant
and equipment generaly are as follows:

Category Years
Buildings 20
Buitding improvements and fixtures 12
Machinery and equipment 10
Office equi pment 6
Computer equipment 3

Impairment Eva uation of | ong-Lived Assets

The Company reviews property, plant and equipment and finite-tived intangibles for impairment
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of an asset may not
be fully recoverable. This eva uation indudes comparing future undiscounted cash flows reating to
the assets, or the appropriate grouping of assets, over the remaining life of such assets to the net book
value of those assets. If the projected cash flows areless than the net book value, an impairment loss
is measured based on the excess of the net book value over the estimated fair value of the asset.

Intangible Assets

TheCompanty reviewsintangi bl e assats with i ndefinitelivesfor impairment annually during thefourth
quarter and whenever events or changes in circumstances occur which would indicate the carrying
vaue of its assets may not be fully recoverable to determine if the current value of intangible assets
is impaired. The Company is given the option to make a qualitative evauation of intangible asset
impairment to determinewhether it is necessary to cal culate thefair value of theintangible assets. The
Compary makesits qualitative eva uation of itsintangible assets by considering, among other things,
the overdl macroeconomic conditions, industry and market considerations, overa! firancia
performance and other rdevant reporting unit specific events. If the Company determines, based on
the quditative evauation that it is more likely than not that the fair value is less than its carrying
amount, the Company would then perform aquantitativeanalysis. However, if the Company concludes
otherwise, the intangible asset is not considered impaired. The Company performs the quantitative
andlysisby comparing thefair valueof theintangibl easset toits carrying vaue. I f theintangibleasset’'s
fair value exceeds its carrying value, it is not impaired. If the intangible asset’s carrying value exceeds
is fair value, an impairment loss is recognized to reduce the intangible asset to itsfair value.

For finite-lived intangibie assets, amortization is generdly provided on the straight-line method-over
the estimated useful lives of the refated assets for financial reporting purposes. The estimated useful
lifeof finitelived intangitl es assets are as follows:

Category Years
Trademarks 14to 30
Customer reationships 10to 14
Patents and technology 7t09
Other intangibles (e.9., agreements) 3109
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Goodwill

The Company assesses its goodwill for imparment annualy during the fourth quarter and whenever
events or changes in circumstances ocour indicating the carrying value of its net assets may not be
fully recoverable. The Company is given the option to make a quaitative evaluation of goodwill
impairment to determine whether it is necessary to calaulate the fair value of its reporting units. The
Company makes its qualitative evaluation of its goodwill by considering, among other things, the
overal | macroeconomic conditions, i ndustry and market considerations, oveard | financid performance
and other relevant reporting unit specific events. Based on the quditative evaluation, if the Company
determines that it is morelikey than not that the fair vaue of areporting unit is less than its carrying
amount, the Company would then perform the two-step impairment test. However, if the Company
concludes otherwise, goodwill is not considered impairad.

The first step of the two-step impairment test compares the fair value of each reporting unit with its
carrying value |f thefair va ueof areporting unit exceeds the carying value of the net assets assigned
to that reporting unit, goodwill is not considered impaired and no further testing is required. If the
carrying value of the net assels assigned to that reporting unit exceeds the fair value of the reporting
unit, the Company must perform the second step of the impairment test to determine the implied fair
vaue of the reporting unit's goodwill. If the carrying val ue of the reporting uhit’s goodwill exceeds
itsimplied fair vaiue, then an impairment loss is recorded to write down the goodwill 1o its implied
fair value. Determining the fair value of a reporting unit involves the use of significant estimates and
assumptions. These estimates and assumptions indude projected revenue growth rates, operating
margins, discount rates, capita expenditures and rel ated depreciation to cal cul ate estimated cash flows.
In addition, certain judgments and assumptions are made in adlocating shared assets and liabilities to
determine the carrying va ues of reporting units.

Pension Benefit Costs

The Company recognizes gains and losses resulting from the settlement of persion obligations in
certain defined benefit pension plans as they occur. In addition, when a lump sum payment is made
for certain defined benefit pension plans, dl deferred gains and losses are immediatdy recagnized.

In afiscal year-end that does not coincide with a month-end, the Company measures the assets and
obligations of the defined benefit plan using the month-erd that is dosest to the entity's fiscal year-
end.

Software Costs

The Company capitaizes cartain costs incurred in the deve opment of internal-use software.  Such
costs indude external direct costs of materias and licenses, payroll and payroll-rdated costs for
associates directly involved in the development of interna-use software, and reated interest costs.
These capitalized costs are included in other assets in the Consolidated Balance Sheets and are
amortized over useful livesof 3to 5 yearson astraight-line basis. Amortization of capitalized software
oosts is induded in selling, generd and administrative expense in the Consolidated Statements of
Income.

As of December 30, 2017 and December 31, 2016, other assets included capitalized costs as foliows

2017 2016
Capitdized software $ 228230 § 190150
Less: accurnulated amortization (177,079) {146,506)

$ 51151 $ 4364
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Amortization expense associated with capitalized softwareduring the vears ended December 30, 2017
and Decernber 31, 2016 was $23 million and $19 million, respectively.

Advertising Costs

Advertising oosts are expensad in the period incurred. A dvertising costs of $1,130 million and $1,255
million for the years ended December 30, 2017 and December 31, 2016, respectively, were included
in selling, generd and administrative expense.

Research and Deve opment

Research and devdopment costs are expensed as incurred and include the costs to design, develop,
test, deploy, and enhance the Company’s products. Research and deve opment costs of $367 million

_and $366 million for the years ended December 30, 2017 and December 31, 2016, respectivdy, were
induded in salling, general and administrative expense.

Distribution Costs
Distribution costs, ind uding shipping and handling costs, are classified as cost of products sold.
Derivatives

All derivative financid instruments are reported on the Consolidated Balance Sheets at fair vdue
Changes in fair value arerecognized either in net income or other comprehensive income, depending
onwhether thederivativeisdesignated asa hedge, the nature of theunderlying exposure being hedged,
and how effective the derivative is at offsetting price movements in the underlying expesure.
Derivatives are used solely for risk management purposes and are either designated as hedges or used
as economic hedges. See Note 7, Financia instruments.

The Company’s operations give rise to exposure to market risks. Generdly, derivative financia
instruments are utilized to reduce those risks. The Company enters into forward exchange contracts
and options for the purchase and sale of foreign currencies as part of the management of its foreign
currency exposures. These exposures arise primarily from anticipated purchases of certain raw
materids, saes of the Company’'s products in foreign currencies, debt and interest payments,
investments in foreign subsidiaries and intercompany financing activities.

The Company was exposed to variability in interest rates associated with debt in prior years. The
Company entered into interest rate swaps and caps to manage interest rate exposure by economicaly
converting a portion of its variabl e-rate debt to fixed-rate debt.

The Company, in the normal course of production, uses large quantities of cocoa, sugar, grains and
other commodities. Prices for these commadities fluctuate due to changes in the supply and demand
for the commodities and changes in the rates of exchange for the currencies in which they aretraded.
To hedge pricerisk associated with its antici pated purchases of these commadities, the Company buys
and sdls futures contracts for the commodities and forward contracts and options for the rdated
currencies.

Fair values of derivativeassets and liabilities not traded either on exchanges or liquid, over-the-counter
markets aredstermined by quantitativernode s primarily based on market observableinputs, induding
market interest rate curves and referenced credit spreads. Most market inputs are activdy quoted and
can be vaidated through external sources, induding brokers, market transactions and third-party
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pricing services. The Company considers the need to adjust the fair value of derivative assets and
ligbilities for counterparty credit quality and non-performance risk.

Income Taxes

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are recognized for the expected future tax consequences of
events that have been induded inthefinancia statements or tax returns, and are determined annudly
based on thedifference between financia staternent and tax bases of assets and liabilities using enacted
tax taws and rates in effect for the year in which the differences are expected to affect taxableincome.
Vaugtion alowances are established, when necessary, to reduce defarred tax assets to the amounts
expected to be redized. The Company provides U.S. federa income taxes for earnings and certain
other estimated future cash amounts of non-U.S. subsidiaries that are expected to be remitted in the
foresseablefuture. The Company hasnot recorded def erred taxesrd ated to theportionof itsownership
in foreign subsidiaries which it considers permanently reinvested. The amount of this unrecognized
U.S. deferred tax liability cannot be practi cably determined.

Global intangible low tax income {* GILTI") provisions in the LS. tax code impose a tax on foreign
income in excess of a deemed return on tangible assets of foreign corporations. Effective 2017, the
Company has dected to trest any potentia GILTI indlusions as a period cost.

Fair Vaue

Fair vdue is determined based on the exchange price that would be received for an asset or paid to
transfer aliability (an exit price) in the principa or most advantageous market for the asset or liability
in an orderly transaction between market participants. Market or observable inputs are the most
persuasivesourceof val ues, foll owed by assumptions based on hypothetica transactionsintheabsence
of market inputs.

Thefair value higrarchy prioritizes the inputs to val uation techniques used to measurefair valueinto
the foliowing three levds, in order of reiahility, as described baow:

Level 1: Quoted prices in active markets that are accessible at the measurement date for identical
assets or ligbilities

Levd 2 Quoted pricesin marketsthat arenot activeor financia instrumentsfor whichall significant
inputs arecbservabl e, either directly or indirectly; quoted pricesfor similar assetsor ligbilities; and
mode-derived valuations whose inputs are observable or whose significant value drivers are
observable

Levd 3: Significant inputs to the vauation modd are unobservable.
Significant transfers between levels are recognized at the end of the reporting period. The carrying
amounts of short-term financia instruments, induding cash and cash equiva ents, receivables, and

certain other liabilities are reasonabl e estimates of fair value due to the short-term nature of these
instruments.

Loans due from and payable to related parties
The Company has various notes payabl e to and receivabl efrom rel ated parties under common control

with its parent. Mars generally has the unilateral ability to medify its globa intercompany capital
" structure, which indudes modifying intercompany note agreements to acoelerate payment. As the

16



@

Company’s rel ated party notes may be modified at Mars’ discretion, these positions are presented on
a net basis and dassified as current in the Consolidated Bal ance Sheets unt ess otherwise disd osed.

ACQUISITIONS
Preferred Brands | ternational Inc.

OnNovember 2, 2017, the Company purchased 100% of Prefared Brands | nternationd |nc. Preferred
Brands international Inc. and its consolidaters subsidiaries (“PBI”) operate as a fully integrated
menufacturer and marketer of all-natura, ready-to-heat | ndian and Asian food products sold primerily
under the Tasty Bite brand. PBI's portfolio includes a wide range of vegetarian offerings, induding
Indian and Asian entress, spice and simmer med kits, and organic riceand lentils. While the majority
of sdes aregencerated in the U.S. and Canada, PBI also manufactures products that are sold through
retalers in the UK. and Austraia and to food service providers in India PBI owns 74.2% of Tasty
Bite Eatables Limited India(“ TBEL" ). TBEL manufacturesall PBI products and has third party sales
inAsia

TheComgany acquired PBI for $171 millionin cash (net of cash aoquired of $3 miltion). TheCompany
incurred acquisition-rdated costs of $12 million which were induded in sdling, general and
administrative expenses in the Consolidated Statement of Income:

The earnings of PBI have been induded in the consolidated financia statements of the Company
beginning November 2, 2017. The excess of the purchase price over thefair vaueof the tangible net
assets and intangibl e assets acquired was recognized as goodwill and is attributabl e to the growth that
the Company expects to redize from this acquisition. Goodwilt generated from the acquisition is not
deductible for tax purposes.

The allocation of the purchase price is praiminary perding the findization of the fair vaue of the
acquired net assets and liabilities assurmed.

As of the acquisition date, the purchase price assigned to the acquired assets and assumed ligbilities
is summarized as follows:

Cash acquired $ 2.864
Other current and non-current assets 40,250
Property, plant and equipment 12,339
Intangible assets
Trademarks - finite-lived 19,000
Customer rd ationships 116,000
Other intangibl e assets 2,500
Goodwill 97 466
Totd assets acquired 290,419
Totd current liabilities assumed (18,884)
Totd long-term liabilities assumed (60,674)
Net assets acquired 210,861
Noncontrolling interests (36,800)
Comparty acquired interests $ 174,061

The estimated useful lives of the identifiable finite-lived intangible assets from the acquisition
indude the following: trademarks, 14 years; customer reationships, 13-14 years; other intangible
assets, 3 years.
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Turin

On April 19, 2016, the Company acquired Turin Holdings, SA.PI. de C.V (* Turin"), a premium
chocol ate company in Mexico. Founded in 1928, Turin manufactures and distributes high-quality
chocolate products. This strategic acquisition aiows the Company to create scale and distribution
effi cienci s through combining Turinwith itsexisting operationsin Mexico. This a lowsthe Company
to leverage Turin's strong portfolio of iconic local brands primarily known around Mexico City and
incresse distribution throughout the rest of Mexico. The Company expects to increase the export of
Turin's liquor-filled chooolates to have broader domestic and international presence:

The Company funded the purchase price of $191 million with cash on hand (net of cash acquired of
$1 million). The cash payment induded $18 million payment to the escrow agent’s acoount and
withholding tax of $13 million. The escrow account was rdleased to the sdler in 2017, The costs
associated with the acquisition of $5 million are induded in the sdlling, general and administrative
epense in the Consolidated Staterments of |ncome.

The earnings of the Turin busi ness have been inciuded in the consolidated financia statements of the
Companty beginning April 19, 2016. Theexcessof thepurchasepriceover thefar vauedf thetangible
net assets and intangible assets aocquired was recorded as goodwill. The goodwill recognized is
attributabl eto thegrowth that the Company expectstc redizefrom thisaoquisition. Goodwill generated
from the acquisition is deductible for tax purposes.

Thefina purchase price and the resulting impact on the Consolidated Bal ance Sheet for the
acquisition are as follows:

Cash acquired 3 1,128
Other current assets 20,497
Property, plant, and equipment 30,486
Cither non-current assets 3,482
Intangible assets:

Trademarks - finite-lived ' 49,371

Developed technology 4,304

Customer relationships 11,563
Goodwill 105,861
Tota assets acquired 235,602
Tota current liabilities assumed (17,264)
Tota long-term liabilities assumed (26,913)
Net assets acquired ) $ 191515

Theestimated useful lives of theidentifiablefinite-lived intangibl e assets from the acquisition indlude
the following: trademarks, 20 years; devel oped technology, 8 years and customer relationships 10-12
yeers.

Ecuadorian Coooa Farm

On April 13, 2016, the Company acquired a cocoa farm located in Ecuador. The farm grows and
harvests high quality cocoa beans that are sold in the global market. The farm began its operations in
1995 and has 730 hectares of land, 485 of which are dedicated to cocoa crops. The purchase pricewas
$8 million.
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INVESTMENTS

Theinvestments induded on the Consolidated Balance Sheets were as follows:

Location on the )
Consolidated Balance Sheat 2017 2016
Available-for-sa e securities I nvestments $ 645536 $468,697
Available-for-sd e securities Other assets 4,481 —
Totd available-for-sde securities 650,017 468,697
Other long-term investments Other assets 141,565 151,946
Totd investments $ 791,582 § 620,643

Gross redized gains and losses on the sdles of investments were $10 million and $0 million,
respectively, for the year ended Decernber 30, 2017 and $0 million and $0 million, respectively, for
the year ended December 31, 2016, and have been included in investment income, net in the
Consolidated Statements of | ncome. The Company recognized a gain of $2 million and a gain $0
million on corporate owned life insurance investments for the years ended December 30, 2017 and
December 31, 2016, respectively.

As of December 30, 2017, therewere no continuous unrealized |osses greater than 12 months, The
Company's investments in available-for-sd e debt and equity securities were as follows:

Urrealized Urredized Recorded

. Cost basis gains losses basis
Equity $ 375541 § 162082 § — § 537623
Corporate debt . 88,573 1,239 —_ 89,812
Other 23,405 — (823) 22 582

$ 437519 § 163321 § (823) $ 650,017

Theinvestments with continuous unrealized losses for less than 12 months and their rdated fair values
were as follows:

Fair Urredized
value losses
Other $ 18101 § 823

As of Decernber 30, 2017, the Company's investments in avalable-for-sal e debt securities totaling
$108 million mature within 1 yeer.

Asof December 31, 2016, the Company’s i nvestments in available-for-sal e debt and equity securities
were as follows: :

Unrealized Unredized Recorded

Cost basis gain losses basis
Equity $ 372644 § 095694 $ — $ 468,338
Corporate debt 359 — — 359

$ 373003 §$ 95684 § — § 488,697

As of December 31, 2016, there were no investments with conti nuous unreaized losses for less than
or greater than 12 months.
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Investments measured at fair value on a recurring basis were categorized as follows at December 30,
2017

Levd 1 Levd 2 Leve 3 Totd
Equity $ 195766 § 445934 & — § 641,700
Corporate debt — 89,812 — 89,812
Other — 22,582 — 22,582

$§ 195766 § 558328 § — § 754,084

Investments measured at fair value on a recurring basis were categorized as follows at December 31,
2016:

Leve 1 Leve 2 Level 3 Tota
Equity $ 183016 §$ 39571 % — $ 579,587
Corporate debt : — 359 — 359
$ 183016 $ 396930 & — $ 579,946

Trusts hol ding deferred compensation investmentstotaiing $104 millionand $111 million areind uded
in the tables above as Level 1 equity securities as of Decernber 30, 2017 and December 31, 2016,
respectively. The Company also accounted for $104 million and $111 miltion of associated liabilities
rel ated todeferred compensation hedintrustsasL eve 1 fair valueliabilitiesrecordedinother liabilities
in its Consolidated Balance Sheets as of December 30, 2017 and Decamber 31, 2016, respectively.

PENSION AND OTHER POSTRETIREMENT PLANS

Thebenefit obligations and rel ated assumptions, plan assets, and funded status of the Company' spension
and other postretirement benefit plans as of December 30, 2017 were asfoilows:

Pension plans Other
postretirement
us Non-U.S. benefit plans
Benefit obligation $1004835 $ 12432804 $ 113,446
Fair value of plan assets 787,133 10,170,305 83,081
Funded status $ (307,702) $ (2,262599) § (30,355)
Accumul ated benefit obligation $ 991,971 § 11,498271 N/A

Thebenefit obligations and rel ated assumptions, pian assets, and funded statusof the Company’ spension
and other postretirement benefit plans as of December 31, 2016 were as follows;

Pension plans Other
postretirement
. u.s. Non-U.S. benefit plans
Benefit obligation $ 988471 $ 10,981,247 § 99,551
Fair value of plan assets 695,847 8,716,933 72,771
Funded status $ (202624) $ (2264314) $ (26,780)
Accumul ated benefit obligation $ 894087 $ 10,133,252 N/A
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Pension and other postretirement bendfit plans with obligations in excess of plan assets as of
December 30, 2017 consist of the following:

Pension plans Other

postretirernent

u.s Non-U.S. bendfit plans
Benefit cbligation $ 1004835 $ 4531282 §$ 113,446
Fair value of plan assels 787,133 2,033,804 83,001

Pension and other postretirement benefit plans with obligations in excess of plan assets as of
December 31, 2016 consist of the following:
Pension plans Cther

postretirerment

u.s Non-U.S. bendfit plans
Benefit cbligation $ 988471 $10979478 ¢ 91,064
Fair value of plan assets 695,847 8,714,571 62,465

Pension and other postratirement bendfit plans with accumulated benefit obligations in excess of plan

assels as of December 30, 2017 consist of the following:
Other

Pension plans |
postretirement
u.s Non-U.S. benefit plans
Accumulated benefit obligation $ 991,971 $3,759,245 N/A
Fair value of plan assets 787,133 1,803,796 N/A
Weighted-average assumptions to determine benefit obligations as of December 30, 2017:
Discount rate 3.70% 2.36% 3.29%
Rate of increase in future
3.75% 3.55% N/A

compensation levas

Pertsion and other postretirement benefit plans with accumulated benefit obligations in excess of plan
assets as of Decernber 31, 2016 consist of the fotlowing:

Pension plans Othe
postretirement
u.s. Non-U.S. benefit plans
Accamulated benefit obligation $ 894087 $ 3,128,165 N/A
695,847 1,447,492 N/A

Fair vadue of plan assets

Weighted-average assumptions to determine benefit obligations as of December 31, 2016:
Discount rate 4.20% 2.44% 3.61%

Rate of increasein future

compensation levels

3.75% 3.61% N/A
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Net periodic benefit cost (income), and related assumptions, contributions and benefits paid for the year
ended Decermmber 30, 2017 were as follows:

Pension plans Other
postretirement
us Non-U.S. benefit plans
Net periodic benefit cost (income) $ 31,795 § 134124 $ {46,201)
Employer contributions 28,892 222,205 2,615
Participant contributions — 237 2,073
Benefits paid 37,133 336,955 7,807
Weighted-average assumptions to determine net periodic benefit cost (income):
Discount rate 4.20% 2.44% 3.61%
Expected long-term rate of
return on plan assets 7.50% 7.39% 6.00%
Rate of increase in future
compensation leves 3.75% 3.61% N/A

Net perioadic banefit cost (income), and rel ated assurmptions, contributions and benefits paid for the year
ended December 31, 2016 were as follows:

Other

Pension plans postretirernent
u.s. Non-U.S. benefit plans
Net periodic benefit cost (income) $ 40,907 $ 107,948 $ (38,006)
Employer contributions 37,706 269,986 1,423
Participant contributions — 270 1,543
Benefits paid 44,769 359,320 7,923
Weighted-average assumptions to determine net periodic benefit cost (income):
Discount rate 4.60% 3.26% 3.56%
Expected long-term rate of
return on plan assets 7.75% 7.26% 6.00%
Rate of increasein future
compensation levels 3.75% 3.54% N/A

During the years ended Decernber 30, 2017 and December 31, 2016, the Company’ s net periodic benefit
cost incdluded losses of $1 million and $7 million, respectivey, rdated to the settlement and curtailment
of certain non-U.S. pension plan obligations.

For measurement purposes rdated to the other postretirement benefit plans, a 6.0% and 5.5% annua
rate of increase in the per capita oost of covered healthcare benefits was assumed for the daims of all
retirees in the years ended December 30, 2017 and December 31, 2016, respectivdy. The hedtihcare
cost trend rates are projected to remain constant at 6.0% in 2018 and to dedine ultimately to 5.0% by
2043.



Amounts resognized in the Consolidated Balance Sheet as of Decemnber 30, 2017 consisted of:

Pension plans m%‘nz_rm
us. Non-U.S. bendit plans
Prepaid associzte bendit assets $ — § 234960 $§ —
Current portion of accrued assodciate benefits 2,311 18,092 2,557
Accrued associate benefits, noncurrent 305,391 2,479,386 27,798
Accumulated other comprehensive loss:
Net (loss) gain $ (253,723) % (3,869,856) § 6,673
Net prior service (cost) credit (4,504) (12,583) 7,407
Déeferred income tax 90,379 1,003,250 {4,928)
Noncontrolling interests 4741 — —_
Accumuiated other comprehensive (loss)
income, net of tax attributable to Wrigley $ (163,107) § (2,879,189) & 9,152

Amounts recognized in the Consolidated Baance Sheet as of December 31, 2016 consisted of:

Pension plans : Other
Us NonUS.  Foaedit o

Prepaid associate benefit assals $ — % 503 § 1,820
Current portion of accrued associate benefits 1,706 15,006 1,345
Accrued associate benefits, noncurrent 290,918 2,249,901 27,254
Accumulated other comprehensive loss:

Net (loss) gain - $(261,202) § (3,649,378) $ 2,486

Net prior service (cost) credit (1,791) (12,601} 7.658

Deferred income tax 92,048 969,478 (3,550}

Noncontrolling interests 6,618 —_ —_
Accumul ated other comprehensive {loss)
income, net of tax attributable to Wrigley $ (164,327) § (2,692,501) § 6,594
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Amounts recognized in other comprehensive income for the year ended Decemnber 30, 2017 consisted
of:

Pension plans Other
postretirement
us. Non-U.S. benefit plans
Recl assification to net income: ]
Amortization of net loss (gain) $ 23218 § 277342 § {59
Amortization of prior service cost (credit) — 2,747 (1.880)
Other movements during the year:
Net (loss) gain $ (18856) § (512164 § 4,246
Net prior service (cost) credit {3,181) {3,065) 1,629
Cther comprehensive income {loss), gross 1,181 (235,140} 3,936
Deferred income tax (1,669) 52,037 (1.378)
Noncontrolling interests (1,877) —_ —
Other comprehensive income (loss), net of tax,
attributable to Wrigley $ (2365) § (183,103) § 2,558

Amournts recognized in other comprehensive income for the year ended December 31, 2016 consisted
of:

Pension plans Other
us Non-U.S. pt;':;?,'{g‘:gt
Redl assification to net income:
Amortization of net loss $§ 17454 5 185734 % 613
Amortization of prior service cost (credit) — 2,118 {106)
Other movements during the year: '

Net (foss) gain $ (84,536) § (704,225} § 405
Net prior service credit {cost) 233 (2,292) 6,781
Other comprehensive (ioss) income, gross {66,849) (518,665) 7,693
Defarred income tax ’ 23,398 109,453 (2,693)
Noncontrolling interests 4,953 — —_

Other comprehensive (loss) income, net of tax,
attributabl e to Wrigley $ (38498) § (409212 § 5,000

The estimated net loss and prior service cost for U.S, pension plans that are expected to be amortized
from accumulated other comprehensive |oss into net periodic benefit cost during 2018 are $20 million
and $0, respectively. The estimated net loss and prior service cost for non-U.S. pension plans that are
expected to be amortized from accumulzied other comprehensive loss into net periodic benefit cost
during 2018 are $268 million and $2 million, respectively. Theestimated netiossand prior servicecredit
for other postretirement benefit plans that are expected to be amortized from accumulated other
comprehensivel ossinto net periodic benefit cost during 2018 are $0 million and $2 million, respectively.

Plan Assets

The Company's expected long-term rate of return on plan assels is determined by the respective plang'
current asset allocation and estimated future long-term returns by asset dass. Projections of overall
expected long-term rate of return on assets assumptions are formul ated through a comprehensive process
Incorporating economic and financial market theory, financia market history, and investment judgment.
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Assumptions are predicated on, and consistent with, theory and are tested against history for
reasonabl eness.

The risk inherent in each asset class is considered to determine an appropriate return expectation for
each asset dass. The higher the risk, the higher the risk premium required rdative to risk-free aseats.
The investment return expectation for the portfolio is determined by weighting the expected returns for
each asset dass by the percentage representation of that asset dass within the portfolio and summing
theresults.

Plan assets for the most significant postretirement benefits have similar investment policies The
Company's pension plans employ along-term strategy driven by the expectation that equity ownership
will outperformdebt searitiesover thelong-termand by theprindi plethat ahigher funded statuswarrants
adoser match between assets and liabilities. Acoordingly, the current target dlocation for plan assets is
generdly 40%-50% inequity ownership, induding publicly traded stock, red estate, and privateequity,
40%-50% in public and private debt seaurities, and 5%-15% in hedge funds and other. For a number
of plans this will change in favor of public debt securities once their funded status and/or the leve of
real interestrates haveincreased. Currently, most investmentsareimpl emented through actively managed
strategies as opposead to passive index tracking approaches.

Investment risk is mitigated by maintaining appropriate diversification of investment assets and by
restricting deviationfrominvestment policy of predeterminedrisk control ranges. Theplansarepermitted
to use derivative instruments for investment purposes for hedging underlying asset exposure and for
reba ancing the asset alocation.

Certain investments that are measured at fair value using the NAV per share{or its equivalent) practica
expedient have not been dassified in the fair value hierarchy. The fair value amounts presented in this
tabte are intended 10 permit reconciliation of the fair value hierarchy to the total retirement plan assets.

U.S. pension plan assets measured at fair vaue as of December 30, 2017 were as follows:

Assets ot fair valueinduded in thefair vaue hierarchy
Leve 1 Levd 2 Leve 3(g} Totd

Equity securities (a) $ 118872 % — 3 — $118,872
Government debt securities (b) — 498 — 408
Corporate debt securities (b) 11,776 66,103 — 77,879
Cash and cash equivdents 27,322 —_ —_ 27,322
$ 157970 § 66601 $ — $224571

Investments measured at NAV as a practical expedient for fair value
Equity securities (a) $ 325,004
Corporate debt securities (b} 81,286
Red estate(c) 17,285
Hedge funds (d) 136,752
Other (f) 2,145
investments measured at NAV 562,562
Contributions after meesurament date —
U.S. pension plan assets at fair value as of December 30, 2017 $ 787,133

The fair val ue descriptions for items (a) through (g) pertain to al plan asset fair value tables in Note 4
and areincluded after the find fair value table presented in Note 4.
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Assets a fair vdlueinduded inthefair vaue hierarchy

U.S. pension plan assets measured at fair value as of December 31, 2018 were as follows:

Level 4 Levd2 Levd3(g)  Tota

Equity securities (a) $ 83721 § — 3 — § 83721
Government debt securities (b} —_ 507 -— 807
Corporate debt securities (b} 10,046 75,731 — 85,777
Cash and cash equivaents 41,305 —_ —_ 41,305
$ 135072 $ 76238 $ — $211,310

Investments measured at NAV as a practica expedient for fair vaue
Equity securities (a) $ 271,830
Corporate debt securities (b) 75,855
Red estate (¢) 3,324
Hedge funds (d) 133,253
Other (f) 175
Investments measured at NAV 484,537
U.S. pension plan assets at fair value as of December 31, 2016 $ 605,847

Assets al fair value induded in the fair value hierarchy

NorrU.S. pension plan assets measured a fair value as of December 30, 2017 were as follows

Level 1 Levd 2  Leve 3(g) Tota

Equity securities (a) $ 1179249 $ — 8 — % 1,179,249
Government debt securities (b) 107,607 948,038 — 1,055,645
Corporate debt securities {b) 181,21 1,353,429 — 1,534,700
Red Estate (c) 56,964 — —_ 56,964
Hedge funds {d) 23,863 —_ —_ 23,863
Private equity (€) 34,674 _— —_ 34,674
Cash and cash equivaents 489,402 — — 489,402
Other (f) 32,489 52,588 12 85,069
$ 2105408 $2,354055 § 12 $ 4,450,566

Investments measured at NAV as a practical expedient for fair value
Equity securities (a) $ 2124045
Government debt securities (b) 407,717
Corporate debt securities (b) 272,912
Redl estate (c} 602,950
Hedge funds (d) 1,388,302
Private equity (€) 914,813
Investments measured at NAV 5,710,739
Contributions after measurement date —_
Non-U.S. pension plan assets & fair value as of Decamber 30, 2017 $10,170,305



Non-U.S. pension pian assets measured at fair vaue as of December 31, 2016 weareas follows:
Asscts a fair vdueinduded in the fair value hierarchy

Leve 1 Level 2 Leve 3(g) Totd

Equity seaurities (a) $ 1038513 § — $ — § 1,036,513
Government debt securities (b) 124,831 444,124 — 568,855
Corporate debt searities (b) 127,801 1,002,907 — 1,130,708
Redl estate(c) 40,395 _— — 40,395
Cash and cash equivdents 129,337 — — 129,337
Other (f) 52,287 56,859 19 108,165
$ 1,511,164 $ 1502800 $ 19 % 3,014,073

Investments measured at NAV as a practical expedient for fair value
Equity securities (a) $ 2,474,617
Government debt securities (b) 122,967
Corporate debt securities (b) 364,742
Red estate () 826,467
Hexdge furds (d) 1,014,910
Private equity () 869,157
Investments measured at NAY ' 5,702,860
Non-U.S. pension plan assets a fair vaue as of December 31, 2016 $ 8,716,933

U.S. and non-U.S. other postretirement benefit plan assets measured at fair value as of December 30,
2017 were as follows: :

Assets a fair value induded in the fair value hierarchy
Level 1 Lewved2 Leve 3(g) Total

Equity securities (a) $ 78396 $ — % — § 7839
Government debt securities (b) 4,539 — — 4,539
Cash and cash equivdents 156 — —_ 156
$ 83001 $ — 3 — § 8309

Investments measured at NAV . —

Contributions after measurement date —

U.S. and non-U.S. other postretirement benefit plan assets at fair vdue as of
December 30, 2017 $ 83,091

U.S. and non-U.S. other postretirement benefit plan assets messured at fair value as of December 31,
2016 were as follows:

Assats at fair vaue induded in the fair value hierarchy
Leve 1 Levd 2 Leve 3(g) Totad

Equity securities (a) $ 72334 § — 8 — § 7234
Cash and cash equivaents 437 — — 437
& 72711 § — & — $ 727N

Investments measured at NAY i

U.S. and non-U.S. other postretirement benefit plan assets ot fair value as of
December 31, 2016 $ 2N

27



@

(b

(c)

(d)

(¢}

(f)

(9)

Thisdassincluded in the fair value hierarchy tableis principally actively managed and consists of U.S.
and foreign large cap and small cap equities. For investments valued using NAV per shareasa practical
expedient, the dass is principaly comprised of commingled funds. Risk is comprised of both equity
market risk and risk associated with active manager decisions.

Thisdassinduded in thefair value hierarchy tableis principally comprised of publicly traded sovereign
debt, corporate credit, asset-backed seaurities and mortgage-backed securities. Most exposures are
activdy managed. Sovereign {government) debt is concentrated in both the developed and emerging
markets, Sovereign debt exposure, from timeto time, may be held in derivativeform. Corporate credit
isconcentrated i ninvestment-gradesecurities, with someexposureto highyield categories. Asset-backed
and mortgage-backed securitiesareprincipally standard investment grade securities. The European Plans
also hold small allocationsto non-publidy traded credit instruments. For i nvestments val ued using NAV
per share as a practical expedient, the dass is principaly comprised of fixed income securities and
commirngled funds.

For investments val ued using NAV per share as a practical expedient, this dass consists predominantly
of directly held, income producing, properties in the U.K. and Netherlands and limited parinerships in
theU.S. The U.K. and Nether ands properties are managed with avaue orientation and afocus on cash
generation. In the U.K. and Netherlands, concentrations currently exist within the retail sectors. The
U.S. based investment funds are generally focused on val ue added strategiesin a broad range of market
sectors. The directly held properties in the U.K. and Netherlands are val ued through independent third
party appraisals. Thevauesof thel).S. limited partnerships are primarily set by thefund managers and
aredetermined taking thefol lowing inputs into consideralion: cost, discounted cash flows, independent
appraisals and market based comparabl e data. | nvestmentsind uded in the fair vauehierarchy tableare
principally comprised of globa property securities with quoted market prices. ’

This dass consists of investments measured at fair value using the NAV per share practica expedient.
The investments are comprised of broadly diversified sirategies such as hedge funds and multi-asset
strategy funds combined inportfolios structured to, under most circumstances, ddiver low NAV volatility
while delivering returns in line with fund objectives. Hedge fund NAV's are determined by the fund
managersand arenot public y availabl ewhil emulti-asset strategy fund NAVsareoften publidy available.
NAVsaregenerdly determined, depending on theunderlying portfdio positions, through acombination
of quoted market prices, market comparable data and mode driven approaches. | nvestments induded
inthefair value hierarchy table are principaly comprised of pooled funds with quoted market prices.

This dass consists of investrments measured 2t fair value using the NAV per share practical expedient.
The investments are in limited partnerships with holdings in leveraged buy-outs (“LBOs"), venture
capita and distressed debt. LBOs comprisethemajority of investmentsat approximetely 83% of hoidings
withtheremaining 17% split between venturecapital and distressed debt investments. Whil etheportfolio
of limited partnership investments is globally diversified, it is also primarily U.S. based. Partnership
vauations are determined by the limited partnerships generad partnars based on the vaustion of
underlying investments and are determined taking the following inputs into consideration: cost,
discounted cash flows, and market based comparable data. Investments induded in the fair value
hierarchy table are principaly comprised of pooled funds with quoted market prices.

This dass is comprised primarily of derivative financia instruments, principally futures contracts, for
risk mahagement purposes and forward currency contracts. Forward and futures contracts are carried a
fair value based on dasing exchange quotations. For investments that are measured at fair value using
theNAV per share practica expedient, this class is comprised primearily of commingled funds that focus
on distressed oredits and equities, recapital ization opportunities, and dis ocations arising from specific
events and forced-selling situations.

Theactivity for the Level 3 assets is not significant for al years presented.
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Multiemployer Pension Plans

CertainMarssubsidiariesthat are not consolidated by Wrigley sponsor defined-benefit pensionand other
post-retirement benefit plans that are availabl e to both Mars (non-Wrigl ey} and Wrigley associates, the
* Shared Plans.” The Company accounts for the Shared Plans as multiemployer plans, and accordingly,
no assets or liabilities arerecorded by the Company for thefunded status of the Shared Flans. Therd ated
pension and other postretirement expenses of the Shared Plans were funded through related party
transactions with Mars and are charged to the Company based primarily on the service cost of aclive
participants for the years ended December 30, 2017 and December 31 2016, respectively, to record its
dlocation of pension benefit costs related to the Shared Plans. During the years ended December 30,
2017 and December 31, 2016, the shared plans credit recorded by the Company were $59 million and
$39 million, respectively.

Cash Flows

Contributions by the Company to its funded defined benefit U.S. pension plans, non-U.S. pension plans,
and other postretirement benefit plans for the next fisca year are expected to be $0, $205 million, and
$0, respectivdy; however, actual contributions may be affected by pension asset and liability va uations
during the yeer.

Defined benefit pension and other postretirement benefit plan payments expected in future years are as
follows:

Pension plans Cther

posiretirement

us. Nor-U.S. benefit plans

2018 $ 36811 § 350705 § 8,049
2019 38,167 350,657 7,979
2020 39,520 373,087 8,320
2021 4p,905 385,547 8,409
2022 42,288 308,972 8,471
2023-2027 239,122 2,236,902 41,823

Defined Contribution Plans

The Company’s contributions to defined contribution retirement plans are based on the compensation
of covered associates. The Company's contributions, all of which were charged to expense, were $80
million and $77 million for the years ended December 30, 2017 and December 31, 2016, respectively.



(5) LONG-TERM DEBT

Thelong-term debt outstanding as of December 30, 2017 and December 31, 2016 was as follows:

2017 2016

2017 Senior Unsecured Notes, fixed interest at 2.00%,

interest payabl e semi-annudly, maturing October 2017 $ — § 400,000
2018 Senior Unsecured Notes, fixed interest at 2.40%,

interest payabl e semi-annualy, maturing October 2018 550,000 550,000
Guaranteed Senior Notes Payablein U.S. dollars

through 2018 at 7.74% fixed interest —_ 50,000
2019 Senior Unsaecured Notes, fixed interest at 2.90%,

interest payabl e semi-annual ly, maturing October 2019 750,000 750,000
2020 Senior Unsecured Notes, fixed interest at 3.38%,

interest payabl e serni-annual ly, maturing October 2020 900,000 900,000
Guaranteed Senior Notes Payable in Euro through 2022 at 6.05% — 110,812
Other 5,495 —
Less: unamortized discount and debt issuance costs (5,318) (9,379)
Tota long-term debt 2,200,177 2,751,433
Less: current install ments of long-term debt, net of unamortized
discount (550,728) (399,877)
Long-term debt, less current install ments $1,640,449 § 2,351,556

TheSenior Unsecured Notes may be prepaid at the Company’s option based upon contractua |y agreed
upon premiums over the term of the notes.

The Senior Unsecured Notes include restrictions, subject to certain exceptions, generdly induding,
but not limited to, i ncurring indebtedness and liens, engaging in mergers, and consol idating and sdling
assets. .

Both series of Guarantead Senior Notes Payablewere cance ed in exchangefor alike amount of notes
issued by Marsin July 2017, namely the €105 million aggregate principa amount of 6.0525% Series
CC Senior Notes due 2022 and $50 million aggregate principal amount of 7.74% Series DD Senior
Notes due 2018. ‘
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Debt Maturities and Capitalized | nterest

As of December 30, 2017, the Company's long term debt maturities during the next five yeers were
asfollows:

2018 $ 550,728
2019 750,638
2020 901,132
2021 967
2022 665
Thereafter 1,365
2,205,495
Unamortized discount and debt issuance costs (5,318)
Totd long-term debt $ 2,200,177

For the years ended December 30, 2017 and Decermnber 31, 2016, the Company incurred interest
expenseof $12 mitlionand $12 million, respectively, whichwas capitalized asacomponent of property,
plant and equipment in its Consolidated Bal ance Sheets.

INCOME TAXES

The Company's results are included in the Mars consolidated U.S. tax return. The U.S. tax sharing
agreement currentty in place with Mars requires the Company to present the tax accounts as if the
Company was a separate tax filing entity. Mars may utilize certain tax benefitsin their consolidated
tax return currently and will reimburse the Company at a future date when those tax benefits could
have been utilized by the Company on a standa one basis.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities arise primarily due to different methods for recording
depreciation and amortization for tax and finanda reporting purposes, the timing of the recognition
of earnings of foreign subsidiaries, associ ate benefits and other acorued amounts. Val uationallowances
areincduded in the accompanying Consolidated Balance Sheets with the rdated deferred tax assets.
Deferred tax assets have been established for domestic and foreign net operating loss carryforwards
and other credits, and valuation allowances have been provided for those losses and credits that are
not expected to be redized. Benefits of net operating loss carryforwards and other tax credit
carryforwards of $191 million have various expiration dates through the year 2037, and $89 million
have no expiration dates.

Asof December 30, 2017 and Decernber 31, 2016, the components of deferred income tax assets and
ligbilities were as foliows:

2017 2016
Deferred tax assels $ 519518 $ 708,498
Valuation dlowance (180,663) {97,986}
Net deferred tax assets 338,855 610,512

Deferred tax liabilities $ 452,863 $1,376,648
Deferred tax liabilities, net § 114,008 § 766,136
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As of December 30, 2017 and December 31, 2016, the components of the provision for income taxes
were as follows:

2017 2016
Current tax provision $1,004943 $ 885014
Deferred tax provisian (667,742) {14,865)
Totd tax provision $ 337,201 § 870,149

Theeffectivetax rates are 14.6% and 32.0% for 2017 and 2016, respectivey. |n generd, the effective
tax rate varies from the L. S. tax rate of 35% primarily dueto theimpactsof U.S. tax reform, exchange
ratefluctuations on previously taxed i ncomeand intercompany loans, non-ocontrolling interest, income
attributabl e to domestic production activities, and state taxes.

Reserves for uncertain tax positions have been dassified as other non-current lizbilities in the
Consolidated Bal ance Sheet un ess expected to be paid within one year. The net interest expense and
penalties of $11 million have been induded in the Consolidated Staterment of Income for the year
ended December 30, 2017. The net interest expense and penaties of $5 million have been induded
in the Consolidated Statement of | ncomefor the year ended December 31, 2016. Pendlties related to
uncertain tax positions are recognized as a component of the provision for income taxes and interest
is recognized as a component of interest expense. Total accrued interest and pendties of $93 million
and $78 million havebeen included in non-current other liabilities in the Consolidated Balance Sheets
as of Decemnber 30, 2017 and December 31, 2016, respectively.

The Compeany is potentially subject to income tax audits in numerous jurisdictions in the U.S. and
internationd ly until the applicable statutes of limitations expire. Tax audits by their nature are often
complex and can require several years to complete Yeers still open to examination by tax authorities
in major jurisdictions include Canada {2010 onward), China {2006 orward), Russia (2014 onward),
M exioo (2009 onward), the U K. {2016 onward}, and the U.S. (2013 onward).

On Decamber 22, 2017, theU.S. Congress enacted the Tax Cuts and Jobs Act of 2017 (“Act” ), which
significantly revised the U.S. tax code. Significant impacts of theAct indude the reduction of the U.S.
corporate tax rate from 35% to 21% for tax years beginning after December 31, 2017 and a one-time
transition tax on undistributed earnings and profits of foreign subsidiaries. As of December 30, 2017
the company has not completed the accounting for the effects of theAct. However in accordancewith
Staff Accounting Bulletin No. 118 (“SAB 118" ), the Company has made reasonabl e estimates related
to: (1) the tax effect of the tax rate change which ASC 740 requires to be recognized in the period in
which the law is enacted; {2) the tax owed on the one-time transition tax for which the Company
expects to pay the federa liability over eight years as alowed by the Act; (3) the reemeasurement of
deferred taxes recorded or disclosed as permanently rei nvested for outside basis differences re ated to
unremitted foreign earnings; and (4) the tax effects rdated to the redlizability of future foreign tax
credits.

The materia components of the provisiond amounts recognized as part of the Act are as foliows:

2017
Re-measurement of U.S. deferred tax balances $ (440,257)
One-time transition tax 316,062
Totd tax provision (bendfit) $ (124,195)

SAB 118 dlows for adjustments to provision amounts during a measurement pericd of one year.
Therefore, if the Company obtains, prepares, or and yzes additiond information about the facts and
dircumstances that existed as of the enactment date that, if known, would have affected the income
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tax effectsinitially reported as provisiona amountsor additional tax effectsthatarenot initidly reported
asprovisiond amounts, adjustments may benecessary during themeasurement period. Any adjustment
will be reported as a component of Provision for income taxes in the reporting period theamounts are
determined.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The notiond amounts of foreign exchange confracts and commodity contracts outstanding at
December 30, 2017 were $4,258 million and $547 million, respectivay. The notional amounts of
foreign exchange contracts and commodity contracts outstanding at December 31, 2016 were $4,419
million and $807 million, respectivdy.

Asof December 30, 2017, thefollowing derivativeswererecorded in the Consolidated Bal ance Sheet:
Asset Liability
fair vaue fair vdue

Derivatives designated as hetiging instruments:

Foreign exchange contracts 3 957 $ 14121
$ 957 § 14,121
Derivatives not designated a5 hedging instruments:
Foreign exchange contracts $ 16,956 $ 5,088
Commaodity contracts 2,031 42
$ 18,087 $

5,130

Asof December 31, 2016, the foll owing derivativeswere recorded in the Consol idated Bal ance Shest:

Asset Liability
fair vaue fair vaue
Derivatives designated as hexdging instruments:
Foreign exchange contracts $ 20918 § 8,842
3 20918 § 8,842
Derivatives not designated as hedging instruments:
Foreign exchange contracts $ 9879 § 18173
Commodity contracts ‘ 2,190 2,168

$ 12,069 % 20,341

Thefair valueof current derivative assets ind uded within prepaid expenses and other was $8 million
and $30 million as of December 30, 2017 and December 31, 2016, respectivdy. The fair vaue of
noncurrent derivative assets induded within other assets was $12 million and $12 million as of
December 30, 2017 and December 31,2016, respectively. Thefair valueof current derivativeliabilities
induded within acoounts payable and accrued liabilities was $7 miillion and $29 million as of
December 30, 2017 and December 31, 2016, respectively. The fair value of noncurrent derivative
liabilities included within other liabilities was $12 mitlion and $0 million as of December 30, 2017
and December 31, 2016, respectivey.



Cash Flow Hedges

" The Company's existing derivative positions rdated to future foreign currency denominated interest
payments and certain foreign currency exposures are principally designated as cash flow hedges. The
Company applies hedge accounting to these derivatives. The effective portion of the fair vdlue of the
cash flow hedges is deferred in accumul ated other comprehensive loss and noncentrolling interests
until the underlying transactions are reflected in earnings. The net deferred gains on these forward
contracts of $1 mitlion, net of taxes, are expected to berecognized in incomeover the next 12 months.

TheCompany entersinto certa nforeign currency forward contractsto hedge certainof itsrisksrd ated
to antici pated purchasesof raw materias, salesof its products in foreign currencies, and intercompany
dlocations such as roydties and interest payments on intercomparty |oans. The net deferred gains on
these forward contracts of $12 million, net of taxes, are expected to be recognized in incomeover the
next 12 months.

Gains{losses) recognized in the Consolidated Statements of | ncome and the Consolidated Statements
of Changesin Stockholders’ Investment for derivativeinstruments principally designated as cash flow
hedges consisted of: .

For the year ended December 30, 2017:

Gross gain (loss) Location of gain Gain (loss)

raxg?ized in (loss) redassified redlassified from
her from Accurmulated Accumulated Other
Comprehensive  Other Comprehensive  Comprehensive Loss

Income Loss into income and into income

. Cost of products sold/ }

Foreign exchange contracts  $ (42,568) foreign exchange loss $ 18,596
Interest rate contracts —_ Interest expense 1,144

For the year ended December 31, 2016:

cclamshion
Grossgan(loss)  Locstionof gan | mecomaatad |
recognizedin {loss) reclassified Other
Other from Acourmutated Comprehensive
Comprehensive  Other Comprehensive Lossand into
Income Loss into income income
Foreign exchange contracts  $ {1,165) %g g; mes%g $ (1,425)
Interest rate contracts — Interest expense . 1,144

Net Investment Hedges

TheCompany designates certain foreign currency derivatives as hedges of net investments in foreign
operations. As of December 30, 2017 and December 31, 2016, losses of $4 million and $1 million,
net of taxes, for derivative instruments principdly designated as net investment hedges were reported
as translation adjustments in accurmul ated other comprehensive loss in the Consolidated Statements
of Changes in Stockholders’ | nvestment.



Fair Value Hedges

The Company's existing derivative positions related to future foreign currency denominated debt
payments are principall y designated as fair value hedges. The Company applies hedge accounting to
thesederivatives. Gains and |osses are recognized immediately. All components of each derivative's
gain or loss wereincluded in the assessment of hedge effectiveness.

The effect of derivative instruments principally designated as fair value hedges on the Consolidated
Statements of | ncome recognized in foreign exchange gain (loss) was:

Gain recognized in Gain (loss) recognized in

income on derivatives income on borrowings

2017 2016 2017 2016
Foreign exchange contracts $ (2506 $§ 8020 $ 1773 $ (8,750

Economic Hedges

TheCompany dso entersinto certai n currency and commodity derivatives, which economically hedge
certainrisksrel ated to antici pated purchases of raw material sand sal esof productsinforeigncurrencies
that are not designated as hedges. The rdated gains and losses are recognized immediatey in the
Consolidated Statements of Income

The effect of economic hedges on the Consolidated Statements of Income for the years ended
December 30, 2017 and December 31, 2016 was:

Location of (loss) gain
recognized inincomeon  {Loss) gain recognized in

derivaives income on derivatives
2017 2016
Foreign exchange contracts Cost of products sold $ 5950 3 (38,019
Foreign exchange contracts Sdling, generd and
administrative expense (147) 4,708
Foreign exchange contracts Foreign exchange loss (735) 8,652
Commodity contracts Cost of products sold (34,873) (23,612)

$ (29,805 $ (48.267)




Derivative Assets and L iabilities Measured at Fair Value on a Recurring Basis

Assets and liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring basis were as follows as of December 30,
2017

Gross
amounts not

offsstinthe
Gross Netamounts o oocnlidated

Gross amounts of recognized amounts  presated in

" Baance
R offset in the the
essatsliahilities Consolideted  Consolidated S
Baance Baance Cash Net

levd1 Levd2 Levd3 Shet (1) Shest collaterd amount
Assts
Forgign exchangecontracts $ — $43552 § -— § (25639) $ 17913 § — $17913
Commodity contracts 4,147 — 6694 {8,810) 2,031 — 208

$ 4147 $43552 $ 6604 § (34449) § 19944 § — $19,944
Liabjilities
Fordignexchengecontracts $§ — $44848 § — § (25639) § 19209 § — $19,209
Commodity contracts 3814 — 5038 (8,810) 42 {42) —

$ 3514 $44848 $ 5038 3 (34449 & 19,251 § (42) $19.200

Asssts and liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring basis were as follows as of December 31,
2016:

Gross
amounts not

offset inthe
Gross Net amounts  ~oonidated

Gross amounts of recognized d.'famm pragnleed in Bdance
i set in the
assalsiabiities Consolidated Consolidated — 9%
Balance Balance Cash Net

Levdt Leved2 Level3  Sheat(1) Sheat collaera  amount
Assets
Fortignexchangecontracts § — $64491 § — $ (24694) § 39,797 § — $39.797
Commodity contracts 10,307 —_ 1,878 (9,996) 2,190 — 2,190

$10,307 $64,491 $ 1,879 § (34,600) & 41987 § —  $41,987
Lighiliti
Foreignexchangecontracts § — $51,709 § — §  (24694) § 27015 $ — $27015
Commodity contracts 12,164 — — (9,996) 2,168 (2,168) —

$12,164 $51,709 § — $ (34,600) $ 29183 $ (2,168) $27.015

{1) Amounts represent the impact of |egally enforcesble master netting agreements that allow the
Company to net settle positive and negative positions.
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Changesin Level 3 net derivative assets and liabilities measured a fair value on arecurring basis
using significant unobservabl e inputs were as follows:

Bdance, January 2, 2016 $ {4,042)
Totd redized/urredized gains (losses)
included in net income (a) 1,974
Purchases, sales and net settlements 3,947
Bdance, December 31, 2016 $ 1,879
Tota redlizedfunrealized gains (|osses)
induded in et income (a) 133
Purchases, saes and net settlements (356}
Balance, December 30, 2017 $ 1,656

(a) Net Income effacts are primarily induded in cost of products sold.
PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT, NET

Property, plant and equipment, net consists of thefollowing at December 30, 2017 and December 31,
2016:

2017 2016

Land $ 260419 § 248877
Buildings and fixtures 2,584,851 2,265,931
Machinery and equipment 7,087,617 6,256,095
Construction in progress 786,887 811,852
10,719,774 9,582,755
Accumul ated deprediation (6,168,125)  (5,489,880)

$ 4,551,649 § 4,092,875

GOODWILL AND OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Thechangesinthecarrying va ueof goodwill for theyearsended December 30, 2017 and December 31,
2016 were as follows: .

2017 2016

Balance, beginning of yeer:

Gross carrying amount $11,553,378  $ 11,599,859

Accumul ated impairment |csses (15,607) (15,607)
Net balance, beginning.of year: $ 11,537,771  § 11,584,252 ,

Goodwill acquired 97,466 105,861

Foreign exchange fluctuations 714,049 (152,342)
Net balance, end of year: $12340286 - $ 11,537,771
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The gross carrying amount and accurnulated amortization by major intangible assel ¢lass were as
follows:

2017 2016
Gross Accumulated Gross Accumulated
carrying amortization carrying amortization
Indefinite-lived:
Trademarks $ 9,950 $§ — § 2422950 $ —
Finite-lived:
Trademarks $ 4305121 § 1439235 § 2430278 § 1,262,727
Customer rd ationships 4,568,927 4,092,611 4,113,757 3,372,249
Patents and technology 1,223,242 1,214,427 1,220,749 1,145,005
Other 43,386 40,956 44,692 44 567
10,140,676 6,787,229 7,809,476 5,814,648
Tota $ 10,150,626 $ 6,787,220 § 10,232,426 § 5,814,548

Armortization expense for each of the next five years is estimated to be $546 million, $153 million,
$150 million, $148 million and $147 million. :

Based on the Company's annual imparment test of indefinitelived trademarks, the Comgany
recognized impairment losses of $649 million during the year ended December 30, 2017, The
impairment fosses ind uded $639 million loss rel ated to the Wrigley indefinite-lived trademarks and
$10 million related to a pet nutrition indefinite-lived trademark. The Company used the rdief-from-
royaty method in determining the fair vaue of the trademarks which indudes projection of future
sales, expected market royalty rates, and merket disoount rates. L ower projected future sal es combined
with higher discount rates as compared to the 2016 impairment test led to the impairment losses in
2017. Subsequent to therecognition of the impairment, the Company re-assessed theremaining useful
lifeand determined that thesetrademarks haveafiniteuseful lifeof 30 yearsand commenced amortizing
these trademarks subsequent to the impairment testing date.

RESTRUCTURING

From time to time the Company approves and implements plans to restructure certain operations with
the intent of better managing the Company's cost structure and aligning certain operations more
effectively with current business conditions. The Company expects the majority of the restructuring
plans to be completed within one year, with plans in certain countries extending beyond one year as
aresult of compliance with local country laws.
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Theactivity in the accrued restructuring balances related to the above plans was as follows:

Other
Severance restructuring
and benefits rdated costs Tota

Baance, January 2, 2016 $ 28079 3 369 § 31,775

Expense 47,238 7.900 55,138

Payments (48,384) (5,956) {54,340)

Foreign exchange fluctuations (347} {147) (494)
Bdance, December 31, 2016 $ 26586 § 5493 § 32,079

Expense . 104,024 21,289 125,313

Payments (50,213) . (18,131) (68,344)

Foreign exchange fluctuations 2177 {61) 2,116
Balance, Decamber 30, 2017 % 82574 % 8590 § 91,164

Restructuring charges of $106 million and $19 million were recorded during 2017 in sdlling, genera
and administrative expense and cost of products sold, respectively. Induded inthe 2017 restructuring
charges were $93 million of expenses incurred relaled to the combination of the Company's Mars
Chocolate and Wrigley segments into a new segment called Mars Wrigley Confectionery. The
Company expects to incur additional restructuring charges of between $215 million and $250 million
relating to Mars Wrigley Confectionery through 2020.

Restructuring charges of $42 mitlion and $13 million were recorded during 2016 in sdling, general
and administrative expense and cost of products sold, respectively.

The restructuring liability is induded in accounts payable and accrued liabilities and other liabilities
in the Consolidated Balance Sheets.

COMMITMENTSAND CONTINGENCIES

The Company is party fo various lawsuits and actipns arising in the course of its business. The
Company accrues for litigation and daims when it is probabl e that a liability has been incurred and the
amount of loss can be reasonably estimated. The Company has evauated daims in accordance with
the accounting guidance for contingencies. |n the opinion of the Company, based on a number of
factors, including advice of outsidelegal counsel in certain instances, the ultimate resolution of these
matters will not have a materia adverse effect on the financia position or results of operations or cash
flows of the Company. Howevar, it is reasonably possible that some matters could be decided
unfavorably to the Company and could require the Company to make payments in amounts that could
be materid. |n the opinion of management, this potentia exposureis not reasonably estimable.

The Company has committed to an investment in limited partnerships not to exceed $21 million, of
which $6 million remains committed and unfunded & Decemnber 30, 2017.

The Company has entered into agreements to lemeoerfa‘n office and warehouse facilities and
equipment under both capital and operating | eases. Amortization of assets recorded under capita
eases was induded in depreciation expense.
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Rental expense under operating | eases was $166 million and $155 million for the year ended
December 30, 2017 and December 31, 2016, respectivdy. Thefollowing is a summary of fulure
minimum lease payments for all capita |eases and operating | eeses as of December 30, 2017:

Capital Operating

leases leases Total

2018 $ 12750 §$ 134,860 $147,619
2019 12,788 91,921 104,709
2020 12,972 70,528 83,500
2021 12,007 42279 54,286
2022 8,618 28,896 37,514
Thereafter 110,026 113,593 223,619
Tota minimum lease payments $ 169,161 § 482,086 $651,247
Amounts representing i nterest (78,414}

Present vaueof minimum | ease payments 90,747

Current portion of obligations under capital leases (12,750}
Long-term portion of obligations under capital leases  § 77,997

PREFERRED STOCK

At December 31, 2016 the Company had 96,500 shares of preferred stock issued and outstanding for
$975 million, which accrued a $544.04 per share dividend payable annudly. On Jly 10, 2017 all
outstanding preferred shares were converted into common shares for a par value of $0.01. At the
conversion date the Company recorded $1,073 million as additional paid in capita and $31 million
for proportiond dividends.

RELATED PARTIES

The Company enters into various transactions with Mars and its affiliated subsidiaries in the normal
course of business or in connection with integration activities between the two companies. Such
transactions ind ude the purchase and sale of finished product, the sublicensing of Wrigley intellectual
property rights, the purchase and sal ecf property, plant and equi pment, and thetransfer and crosscharging
of associates and other charges. -

On September 27, 2016, Mars purchased all issued and outstanding preferred stock in Wrigley.

During theyeers ended December 30, 2017 and Decernber 31, 2016 transactions with ref ated partieswere:
as follows:

L ocation on the
. Financial Statements 2017 2016
Sales Net sales $ 1369318 § 1,191,240
Cost of products sold and
Purchases inventory 1,204,369 1,057,698
Shared service costs, management  Sefling, generd and
fees and other charges administrative experses 179,845 159,102
Seling, generd and :
Technotogy and I T rdated fees administrative expenses 192,695 182,417
| nterest income and expenses Interest expense with Mars, net 57 33,994
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As of December 30, 2017 and December 31, 2016 bal ances with related parties were as follows:

2017 2016
Duefrom Mars, net (a) $ 4353245 $ 5519889
Borrowings from Mars (b):
Guarantead revolver at 1.96% vaiablerate $ 402128 $ 373993
2016 Term Loan a 2.22% variabl e rate due 2021 1,338,799 1,500,390
1,740,927 1,874,383
Less current portion of borrowings 634,677 543,133
Long-term borrowings from Mars $ 1,106250 $ 1,331,250

Indudes the net of acopunts receivabl e, cash management, notesreceivable, notes payables, and accounts
payable balances, as a result of transactions in the norma course of business. Mars generadly has the
unilateral ability to modify its globa intercompany capital structure, and rmodify the payment terms for
note agreements, accounts receivableand accounts payabl e The aggregated bal ance of thesetransactions
represents a net due from Mars, and is presented within current assets,

In September 2016, Mars paid in full $1,881 mitlion of the Company's loan with third parties (Senior
Unsecured Term Loan). In consideration for Marg payment of the Senior Unsecured Term Loan, the
Company entered into a 2016 Credit Agreement with Mars that provides for a $1,500 million termioan
and $400 million guaranted revolver borrowing available This was a non-cash financing activity for
the year ended December 31, 2016. Borrowings under theterm loan require quarterly principal payments
with maturities during the next five years as follows $225 million in 2018, 2019, and 2020, and $656
million in 2021.

Credit fadility

InApril 2017, a Mars subsidiary in China amended an existing revol ving credit facility to borrow up to
650,000 Chinese Yuan from Wrigley's Chinese subsidiary, bearing interest at afixed rate of 2.0%. The
credit facility matures on December 7, 2020. As of December 30, 2017 and December 31, 2016 theMars
subsidiary in China had no borrowings outstanding under its credit facility.

Guarantee Obligations

Pursuant to guarantee agreements, Wrigley unconditiondly guarantess, on a joint and severd basis, the
payment of (i) dl of the obligations of Mars under the credit agreement, dated as of September 27, 2016
as amended and restated as of September 12, 2017 (the “Mars Credit Agreement” }, among Mars, as
borrower, the lenders party thereto and JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A.., as administrative agent, (ii} all of
theobligations of Mars under theMars 6.47% Series B Notes due 2018, 8.52% Series C Notes due 2019,
6.57% Series D Notesdue 2020, 6.72% Series E Notes due 2023, 2.72% Series G Notesdue 2019, 3.34%
Series H Notes due 2022, 3.25% Series | Notes due 2022, 3.49% Series J Notes due 2024, 3.74% Series
K Notes due 2027, 2.51% Series L Notes due 2023, 1.58% Series M Notes due 2023, 2.72% Series N
Notes due 2026, 2.82% Series O Notes due 2028, 2.97% Series P Notes due 2031, 3.34% Series QNotes
due 2036, 3.57% Series R Notesdue 2041, 3.75% Series S Notes due 2046, 3.30% Series T-1 Notesdue
2024, 3.30% Series T-2 Notes due 2024, 3.53% Series U-1 Notes due 2027, 3.53% Series U-2 Notes due
2027, 3.63% Series V-1 Notes 2029, 3.63% Series V-2 Notes 2020, 3.78% Series W Notes due 2032,
4.07% Series X Notes due 2037, 4.27% Series Y-1 Notes due 2042, 4.27% Series Y-2 Notes due 2042,
1.37% Series Z Notes due 2022, 1.71% Series AA Notes due 2024, 2.00% Series BB Notes due 2027,
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6.05% Series CC Notes due 2022, and 7.74% Series DD Notes due 2018 (the notes described in this
dause(ii), collectivaly, the “ Guaranteed Notes™ ).

TheMarsCredit Agresment currertly ind udescredit facilitiesin an aggregalepringi pal amount of $10,000
miillion and provides that Mars may increase the aggregate principal amount of credit facilities available
thereunder by up to $1,000 million. The aggregate principal amount outstanding under the Mars Credit
Agreement as of Decemnber 30, 2017 was $8,325 million. The guarantee by Wrigley of the obligations
under the Mars Credit Agreement will automaticalty terminate upon (i) the termination or expiration of
commitments of the lenders to make extensions of aredit to Mars pursuant to the Mars Credit Agreement
and {ii) the payment in full of the obligations of Mars under the Mars Credit Agreement. ‘

The aggregate principal amount outstanding under the Guaranteed Notes as of December 30, 2017 was
$8,113million. Theguaranteeby Wrig ey theobligationsunder each Guaranteed Noteswill automatical ly

- terminate upon the payment in full of the obligations of the issuer thereof under such Guarantesd
Notes.

ACCUMULATED OTHER COMPREHENSIVE LOSS

The components of accumutated other comprehensive loss, net of tax, at December 30, 2017 and
December 31, 2016 were as follows:

Foreign Pension and
currency Unredized other post-
trangtalion Deferred gainon retirernent
adjustments hedges  irwvestments benefits Total
Bdance, January 2, 2016 $ (3921574} § 4296 $ 64,888 § (2407,524) § (6,259,914)
Other comprehensive income
before reclassification (51,896) (1,258) 25912 (592,554) (619,797}
Recl assification from other
comprehensive income = (173) 390 149,844 150,061
Qther comprehensive
income, net (51,896) {1.432) 26,302 (442,710} (469,736)

Ba ance, December 31, 2016 $ (3973470) § 2864 $ 91,190 $ (2,850,234) § (6,729,650)
Other comprehensive income

before reclassification 1,716,285 {29,829) 76,995 (404,771) 1,358,680
Redl assification from other

comprehensive income — 13,833 (9,294) 221,861 226,400
Other comprehengive

income, net 1,716,285 (15,996) 67,701 (182,910) 1,585,080

Badance, December 30,2017 § (2,257,185) § (13,132) $§ 158,891 § (3,033,144) $ (5.144,570)
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The components of comprehensive income for the year ended December 30, 2017 were as follows:

Total Wm. Non
Wrigley . contralling
interests Totd

Net income $ 1,603,016 $ 361606 $1,964,622
Cumulative transl ation adjustments, net of tax
expense of $7,264 1,716,285 — 1,716,285
Deferred hedges:
Net deferred hedging gains (losses), net of tax
benefit of $12,739 (29,829) — (29,829)
Less redassification of deferred hedging | osses
recognized in net income net of tax benefit of $5,907 13,833 —_ 13,833

Unredlized gain on available-for-sal e securities:
Unredized ga'nsa'isir%duing the period,
1,022

net of tax expense of 76,995 —_ 76,995
Less: rec assification of (gains) on investments
induded in net income net of tax expense of $126 (9,294) —_ (9,294)
Net changein pension and other postretirement
expense, net of tax benefit of $48,990 (a) {182.910) 1877 (181,033
Comprehensive income $3188,096 $ 363483 $3,551,5/9

{a) Refer to Note 4 for information related to the prior service costs arising during the period, the net
loss arising during the period and amortization of prior service costsinduded in net periodic pension
cost.

The components of comprehensive incomefor the year ended December 31, 2016 were as follows:

Totd Wm. Non
Wrigley . cortrolfing

Company interests Total
Net income $ 1,418,044 431,157 $1,849,201
Curmulative trand alion adjustments, net of tax '
benefit of $110,080 (51,896) — (51,896)
Deferred hedges:
Net deferred hedging gains (losses), net of tax
benefit of $83 (1,259) — (1,259)
Less redlassification of deferred hedging gains
recognized in net income net of tax expense of $108 {(173) — {(173)

Urredized gain on avail abl e-for-sa e seaurities
Unredlized ga'nsa'is'ng during the period,

Less: reclassification of (gains) on investments
included in net income net of tax expense of $0 390 — -390
Net changein pension and other postretirement .
experse, net of tax benefit of $130,158 (a) (442,710) (4,953)  (447,663)
Comprehensive income $ 0948308 $ 426204 $1,374,512

(a) Refer to Note 4 for information related to the prior service costs arising during the period, the net
loss arising during the period and amortization of prior service costsincluded in net periodic pension
cost,
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{Gains) lossesrecognized inthe Consolidated Statement of | ncomefor reclassificationsfromaccumul ated
other comprehensive loss were included in thefollowing financia statement line items during the years
ended December 30, 2017 and Decamber 31, 2016:

Description of Accurnulated Other Location of {Gain) Loss Amounts Reclassified
Comprehensive Loss Recognized inthe Accumul ated Other
Components Staternents of |ncome Comprehensive Loss
2017 2016
Deferred Hedges: )
Foreign exchange contracts Cost of products sotd $ 6,265 $ 780
Foreign exchange contracts Foreign exchange loss (gain) 12,331 (2,205}
I nterest rate contracts {nterest expense 1,144 1,144
Totd before tax 19,740 (281}
Tax benefit {expense) 5,907 {108}
Net of Tax $ 13833 % {173}
Unrealized {gain) loss on investments:
Redlized gain on sdeof investments  Investment income $ {9420) $ 390
Tax (expense) : {126) —
$§ (9204) § 390
Pension and Other Postretirement:
Net loss (b} $ 300501 $ 203801
Net prior service cost (b} 867 2012
Tota before tax 301,368 205,813
Tax benefit 79,507 55,969
Net of Tax $ 221861 § 149844

{b) Accumulated other comgprehensive loss components areinduded in the computation of net periodic
pension cost {see Note 4 for additiona detail).

SUBSEQUENT E\) ENTS

The Company evaluated subsequent events through March 30, 2018, the date the Consol idated Financia
Statements were avail abl e to beissued, for conditions both existing and not existing as of Decernber 30,
2017 and cond uded there were no subsequent events to recognize and no additional subsequent events
to discdose other than those listed below.

On January 17, 2018, the Company acquired a 40% ownership interest in KIND Inc. (*KIND" ) for $1.3
billion. The Company paid cash for KIND, which was financed through a long term loan from Mars.
KIND sdlis healthy snacksand itsreci pesincludenutrient-dense, simpl eand premiumingredients. KIND's
sales are predominantly in the U.S. and Canada.

In conjunctionwith theglobd reorganization of Mars certain subsidiariesin the following countries have
been contributed to the Company subsequent to December 30, 2017 Russia, Poland, Hong Kong,
Philippines, Kazakhstan, Malaysia and Thailand.



